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Job # 30711 
 

☐ Subcommittee 
☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning/ Dan Johnston  

 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state 
departments and institutions; and to declare an emergency. 
 
Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1 - 4 
 
Legislative Council:  Adam Mathiak  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Chairman Holmberg:  Opened the hearing on SB 2024. All members were present. 
 
Joe Morrissette, Director, Office of Management and Budget: See attachment #1 for 
testimony in support of SB 2024. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: The loan repayment was part of the discussion during the last Session 
and the Legislature determined what they were going to do, which was wait; and that 
discussion I'm sure will also occur this Session. 
 

Senator Wanzek: On the lawsuit expenses of $408,000 for the Historical Society -  judgement 
cost.  You said the cost would be $441,000 on June 1st 2019- doing the math, I assume there 
is already accrued interest on it already. 
 
Joe Morrissette: That is true, so that is a miss on our part; the amount should have been 
much higher. There was an additional $10,000 of costs that were awarded at the time of the 
judgement and then interest on that total amount through June 1st. 
 
Senator Wanzek: When was the judgement? 
 
Joe Morrissette: December of 2017. 
 
Senator Dever:  There is an emergency clause on this, and then the language says for the 
period beginning with the effective date of this act and ending June 30th, 2021. So can I 
assume some of these deficiencies are appropriated from the current biennium and some 
from the coming biennium? 
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Joe Morrissette: The appropriation authority would be available immediately with the 
emergency clause, so in those cases like the Comstock judgement that’s in our appropriation 
we would make that payment as soon as we can to avoid any additional interest accruing; 
anything we didn’t spend, we would turn back. In other cases there could be some question 
as to when those payments would need to be made and if it stretched into the next biennium 
then it allow that authority to be carried over into the next biennium. 
 
Senator Dever: We do not need to factor that into the agencies budget for the coming 
biennium. 
 
Joe Morrissette: It would be covered under this in case there was timing issue and the 
payment was not made by June 30th. 
 
Sandy McMerty, Deputy Tax Commissioner, North Dakota Tax Department: This is a 
much-anticipated deficiency based on the cuts that were made in the last biennium. These 
two lines used to have a little bit of cushion, but because of those cuts about 4.7 was removed 
from those lines, which has created this anticipated deficiency. So we’d appreciate your 
support- Commissioner Raushenberger did note that we asked you for that continuing 
authority to transfer between funds into the coming biennium, so we’d appreciate your support 
on that to because it gives us some flexibility with those dollars. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: And if we didn’t appropriate-what would happen? 
 
Sandy McMerty: I am not completely certain. I would have to ask that question back at the 
office; at this point, I know that we are required to pay out of the funds, but if there are no 
funds in there, we have no mechanisms to do that. 

 
Karlene Fine, Executive Director, North Dakota State Industrial Commission: we are 
here because we’re involved in litigation, some of this litigation started back at a prior 
biennium under the prior federal Administration, there was, what we believe to be, 
overstepping by the federal government in terms of regulation in our environmental area that 
dealt with fracking, venting and flaring. Therefore, we went to court, but when there was a 
change in administration, we flip-flopped. So now we’re still in that same litigation; so those 
costs came up higher than we anticipated. In the prior biennium we had thought we projected 
a sufficient amount of money and now we were drawn into some additional litigation regarding 
the ordinary high water mark. The legislature, at the end of last Session, directed that we get 
involved in litigation, trying to get payment for the DAPL costs. So we have just run out of 
money and we need to have sufficient funds to complete that litigation. Now, if you’d like to 
have details on each of those environmental cases, we’d have Lynn Helms come and give 
you that information. 

 
Senator G. Lee: I thought there was some hesitation in paying those loans, because we were 
trying to get some money out of the feds-Is that still in consideration or have we just given up 
on our request that the feds pay? 

 
Karlene Fine: I believe the Adjutant General will be talking about that. 
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Chairman Holmberg: I think what we see hear is the agencies, the executive branch- they have a 
bill, their job is to come to us and ask that the bill be paid. It was a legislative decision to wait on the 
feds and that will, I think be a legislative discussion point as to whether or not we should pay off the 
loan. The discussion last Session was, if we have a loan we might have a little more leverage with the 
federal folks that we need our loan paid off. However, if we do not owe any money the feds might be 
less inclined. 

 
Major General Alan S. Dohrmann, North Dakota National Guard: See Attachment #2. 

 
Senator G. Lee: So the total cost for that DAPL protest would be the $37.7 million, plus the roughly 
$13.5 million. 
Major General Alan S. Dohrmann: No, I believe the $13.5 million is within that total amount. 

 
Senator G. Lee: The total federal contribution has been $10 million, as their share of the $37.7 million? 

 
Major General Alan S. Dohrmann: That is correct. 

 
Senator Wanzek: I think I know the answer to this question, but I will ask it anyway-The perpetrators 
that created the mess, has there ever been an investigation into who might have been behind it? Is 
there any other entity that was responsible here? 

 
Major General Alan S. Dohrmann: Not that I am aware of. Where there was criminal activity, local, 
state and federal law enforcement officials have investigated those cases from a civil standpoint; from 
my discussions with the AGs office, it is just the lawsuit with the Corp of Engineers. In addition, there 
were things we did for the Corp of Engineers toward the end of that event that are arguably federal 
responsibilities, just because it was their land and we had to do things for them to get that land back 
to what it was meant to be and that is a flood plain on the Missouri River. 

 
Andrea Wike, Assistant Director, State Historical Society of North Dakota: See Attachment #3  

 
Senator Dever: I am interested in the difference between the lawsuit expenses that OMB is asking 
for and what the Historical Society is asking for. 

 
Andrea Wike; One is for the lawsuit payment and what we are asking for is the legal fees associated 
the lawsuit. 

 
Chairman Holmberg: The first part goes to the other folks? 

 
Andrea Wike: Correct. 

 
Kathy Roll, Office administrator, office of the Attorney General: See Attachment #4. 

 
Chairman Holmberg: You are asking for this to be added to your present. Why isn’t this coming on 
Monday when we look at your budget? 

 
Kathy Roll: We’ve received this grant already and will be expending the funds this biennium, 
assuming this passes. 

 
Chairman Holmberg: You want authority? 

 
Kathy Roll: Correct. 

 
Meeting adjourned. 
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Job # 31279 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning / Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
AN ACT to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state departments 
and institutions; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments  

 
SB 2018 – Historical Society (sub-committee: Erbele, Krebsbach, Mathern) 

 $500,000 in private funds to support historic sites.  Heavy lift for local & friend’s groups.   

 Whitestone Battlefield Monument – more fitting monument for Native Americans – 

revisit & hoping for $200,000 

 Need $260,000 – Comstock litigation (legal fees) 

 SB 2146 Pioneer Village location.   Are they asking to build turnkey museum?      New 

building would not be part of the emergency.  

 

SB 2019 – Parks and Recreation (sub-committee: Sorvaag, Bekkedahl, Mathern) 

 Reguest for $5M for the Peace Gardens – Canada hasn’t contributed much. 

 $1.8 capital projects 

 Line item transfer 

 Dept manages a lot of land that produces oil revenue.  Does the law allow them to put 

that into their budget and use it?  Are we evading the legacy trust fund because it’s 

being sent directly to the agency?  

 

SB 2020 – Water Commission (sub-committee: Lee, Sorvaag, Robinson) 

 Hold off on anything with Fargo Diversion – meet with them tomorrow  
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 New money available for projects with January revenue forecast -  $350.7M. 

 Requests were $700M.   

 Governor’s recommendations to be added to the executive budget – Authorizes the 

agency to transfer money between lines (line item transfer).  Section 5 

 Different purposes of how water is allocated.  

 Amount of money being carried over and not being used.  $308.3M carryover 

  

 

SB 2021 – Workforce Safety and Insurance (sub-committee: Oehlke, Hogue, Grabinger) 

 Coverage for volunteer firemen – would like to see in separate bill for policy 

 WSI could do better job of letting people know how much coverage they have.  

 Shifting 12 FTEs to IT 

 Process used in independent reviews – are suspect. 

 

 

SB 2022 – Retirement and Investment Office (sub-committee: Poolman, Wanzek, 

Robinson) 

 Software Update  

 

 

SB 2023 – NDPERS (sub-committee: Krebsbach, Poolman, Robinson) 

 Restore the program for an FTE at $186,000 

 Discontinuing 2 program areas in order to meet 90% budget reduction, but 

recommend that at least one be restored and ½ of funding they requested be restored.   

 Have some temporary help & dollars restored 

 Maybe a self-funded plan. 

 Governor’s health insurance plan proposal for 3 different options.  

 Pension plan recovery 

 

SB 2024 – Deficiency (sub-committee: Dever, Lee, Mathern) 

 The legislature has moved away from wanting to pay back DAPL loan. 
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☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Alice Delzer and Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A Subcommittee hearing regarding the Deficiency Bill.   
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Fund 305 Litigation Expenses (Karlene Fine)  
2. Breakdown from Adam Mathiak, Legislative 

Council   

 
Senator Dever: Called the subcommittee to order on SB 2024 at 10:30 am in the Harvest 
Room. Let the record show that all subcommittee members were present: Senator Dever 
Chair, Senator Gary Lee, Senator Grabinger. Joe Morrissette, OMB and Adam Mathiak. 
Legislative Council were also present. During the hearing I asked a question regarding the 
language and ending June 30, 2021 and if that should be reflected in this biennium. That is 
am amendment we would need to add to the bill. The only other amendment I recall being 
requested is the Attorney General.   
 
Joe Morrissette, Director, OMB: There was an amendment requested by OMB to add 
$33,100 to the deficiency request in our section of the bill for those law suit expenses 
because the interest that is incurring and will continue to incur until a payment is made was 
not included in the balance due on that judgement so we asked for that amendment.  
 
Senator Dever: Can we quickly walk through each of these sections again? I understand the 
OMB was associated with the lawsuit. That was associated with the legal fees.  
 
Joe Morrissette: This subdivision 1 amount for OMB is the remaining balance of the 
judgment that is due and was awarded in that lawsuit. Part of the judgement amount was 
paid with money that was being held in reserve for that contract. Part was paid through a 
mediation agreement with the architects involved. This is the remaining amount with interest. 
 
Senator Dever: The legal costs are requested by the state historical society correct?  
 
Joe Morrissette: That is correct. This is only the judgement part that is in subdivision 1 of 
the bill.  
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(2:18) Senator Grabinger: We also have a proposed amendment from the General in raising 
some of the request that he has in here. You should have a copy of that. He presented it with 
his testimony.  
Senator Dever: $399,001?  
 
Senator Grabinger: On page 2 line 1, it strikes the 488,822 and raises it up to 887,832 and 
it raises the other numbers as well. In the third paragraph he explains why he needs that. He 
says, “To complete the projects in the biennium and additional interest is needed.” There 
would be those two amendments and then if I remember correctly, was the historical society 
a reduction because we are paying it earlier? Can she come up and address that?  
 
Andrea Wike, Assistant Director, Historical Society: The legal fees we need to complete 
the law suit will be about $265,000 and not the $280,000.  
 
Senator Grabinger: It looks to me like we are going backwards by putting the amendments 
in. One of them is quite a bit more and two are quite a bit more and one is less.   
 
(5:00) Senator Dever: I made a note on the Tax Department the homestead tax credit would 
be $1.2 million instead of $1,170,000. Did I have that right?  
 
Sandy McMerty, Deputy Tax Commissioner: That $1.7 is what we need to finish out the 
biennium. If it would be in a deficiency state, we would have to carry over whatever that 
deficiency would be into the next bienium and pay it out of the next biennium dollars back. 
There is nothing in the statute that says we can’t pay. We have to pay once the dollars have 
been in that fund.  
 
Senator Dever: So the numbers in the original bill were correct. Remind me what those 
litigation costs were for.  
 
Karlene Fine, Executive Director, Industrial Commission: This is for various cases we 
have been involved in with the federal government. We have considered to be overstepping 
during the prior administration. There are a number of cases involved in that as well as we 
have been involved in litigation about trying to get a claim with the federal government 
regarding the DAPL costs the state incurred. We had not anticipated but now have been 
paying out costs for the Sorum versus North Dakota case regarding the ordinary high water 
mark. There has been one case added about bankruptcy involving oil wells and we wanted 
to get in line for some of those bankruptcy proceeds. I will pass out the list of the different 
cases we have been involved in. Attachment #1. This was as of December 31. Subsequent 
to that, we have expended the entire $49,148.19 balance. We are owing to two sets of 
attorneys at this time. So we would like an emergency clause in the bill.    
 
Senator Dever: Do I understand correctly that I think in the testimony, everything in the 
deficiency bill was approved through the emergency commission except for some of the 
money the Attorney General requested?  
 
Karlene Fine: We have made no request to the emergency commission regarding our costs. 
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Joe Morrissette: That would be true for the OMB portion as well. There has been no 
emergency commission request for that. That is the same for tax. 
 
Senator G. Lee: Could you give us the total number?  
 
Senator Dever: The number we have is $16,386 on the amendment that Adjutant General 
Dohrmann gave us. I understand the protest costs were something we approved the loan for 
the bank in the last session.  
 
Adjutant General Dohrmann: All the requests we have, have gone to the emergency 
commission.  
 
Senator Dever: What are we doing with the Attorney General? 
 
Kathy Roll, Financial Administrator, Office of Attorney General: We had gone to 
emergency commission for a prosecution witness. He owes $100,000 we received $50,000. 
Our request is for the $50,000 additional amount. In addition, we received an opioid crisis 
response award from the Department of Health. That includes $856,000 worth of equipment 
that we will need authority for. That will be federal funds. The prosecution witness fees would 
be general fund money.  
 
Senator Dever: You just need the authority for the federal spending.  
 
Kathy Roll: That is correct.  
 
Senator Grabinger: The $50,000 is state. So you are asking for an amendment to include 
the $50,000 and the authority to use federal funds.   
 
Kathy Roll: That is correct.  
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council: You are looking for the entire total for the bill. It would 
be a mixture of funding. Previously it was all general fund dollars. If we are authorizing federal 
funds, then a portion of that is going to be separated out. I’ll have to run the numbers to get 
you the totals including the breakout. 
 
Senator Dever: Is there room in the current biennium budget for these requests? 
 
Joe Morrissette: This would just reduce the amount of the excess General Fund money that 
would go into the Budget Stabilization Fund. Based on the legislative and executive forecast, 
we had assumed there would be $315M that would be excess general fund money that would 
flow into the Budget Stabilization Fund. This additional amount would reduce that. It would 
be appropriated out of this biennium and spent this biennium. It would reduce the over reach 
in the General Fund. Either way the beginning balance is limited to $65M. Everything over 
that amount will by law go to the Budget Stabilization Fund. This would reduce that over 
reach. There is no effect on the next biennium’s budget.  
 
Senator Dever: Is there anything additional we need to discuss?  
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Senator Grabinger: We just need to have the amendments drawn up.   
 
Senator Dever: Do we need to see the amendments? 
 
Senator Grabinger: We will approve them in the subcommittee before we take them to the 
full committee.    
 
Senator Dever: We can come earlier in the morning and look at them.  
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council: Just to review, (Attachment #2) there would be a 
$33,000 increase for OMB, a $688,000 for the Adjutant General, a decrease of $15,000 for 
the State Historical Society, and an increase of $905,000 for the Attorney General’s Office. 
The total increase would be about $1.6M. We would have a total of $19.8M of that $856,000 
which would be federal funds. The remaining $18.96M would be general fund dollars.    
 
Senator Dever: That sounds right. We will close this hearing and we will deal with the motion 
later.  
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JOB # 32245  
 

☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:   Alice Delzer / Pam Dever  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state 
departments and institutions; and to declare an emergency.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Proposed Amendment # 19.0689.01001. 

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2024. All committee members 
were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council and Stephanie Gullickson, OMB were also 
present.  
 
 Senator Dever: submitted Attachment # 1. Amendment # 19.0689.01001.  I think that 
everyone knows that deficiency appropriation are monies to cover unexpected expenses that 
come up during the biennium and then they come to the next session to request for deficiency 
appropriations. The first amendment first makes reference to federal funds. There is money 
in the Attorney General’s budget for the opioid crisis and for the purchase of equipment. The 
second amendment was to replace 2021 with 2019. This is money allocated to the current 
biennium and not the next one. Under OMB there was an increase of $33,100 because of 
accrued interest. The money there is for lawsuit expenses associated with the Comstock Law 
Suit regarding the Heritage Center.  The OMB expenses are increasing in the amount 
necessary to cover the settlement.  The legal fees are the increasing cost.  The Adjutant 
General had an increase in disaster costs and protest costs, so there is an increase up to 
$16.386 M. The Attorney General needed $50,000 additional to cover the cost of prosecution 
witness fees.  $855,000 is federal funds that come to deal with the opioid crisis.  They need 
to buy 15 true Narcan handheld narcotic analyzers and buy other equipment. (3.08) Those 
are the amendments to the bill. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: I thought we were not going to pay the loan back on the protest costs 
because if we do there is the fear that, they are trying to get money from the feds and if we 
paid our bills, the feds would have little to no interest.  I thought we were taking that off.  
 
Senator Dever:  I think what they argued is we need to keep this in process and that should 
not stop the negotiations with the feds.  They meaning the Adjutant General.   
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Senator Grabinger: Senator Dever is correct the money needs to be there. So that at some 
point, it has to be paid by either us or the federal government. We may not necessarily pay 
it, but the money needs to be there. (4.25) 
 
V. Chairman Wanzek:  I guess I am wondering the same thing.  We need to have the money 
there, but we will not use it to pay the loan?  I was under the understanding that we were 
going to wait on that, and hopefully recoup that money.  
 
Senator Dever: Senator Hoeven is working on this and it will come to a conclusion one way 
or the other during the session. If it doesn’t work out, we need to have the appropriation there 
to cover it.  If the committee would like to set this aside and ask for clarification, I would be 
happy to seek that.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: If it is appropriated for use this biennium, who makes the decision when 
to spend the appropriation?   Is that the Attorney General or Adjutant General? 
 
Senator Dever: The Adjutant General. It has an emergency clause prior to June 30. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Why don’t we get some further clarification. I was under the 
impression that we were not going to do anything.  I know we have a loan from BND.   
 
Senator Hogue: Did the subcommittee got any information from the Attorney General on the 
status of the federal torte claim that he is pursuing against the federal government for this 
money. 
 
Senator Dever: I don’t think there was any reference to that.  Are you talking about Minot 
flooding?  
 
Senator Hogue:  No. The Attorney General had made a decision to initiate a federal torte 
claim against the federal government to recover this money.  
 
Senator Dever:  I think that is what Senator Hoeven is working on. (7.11) 
   
Senator Hogue:  I think Senator Hoeven would be looking for an appropriation. I thought I 
heard that the Attorney General had initiated a suit to make a recovery for this  
 
Senator Dever: We will include that on our further inquiry.    
 
Senator Mathern:  An alternative to consider would be just to excise this piece from this bill, 
and move the bill forward. It would leave this portion in limbo.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Why don’t we let them visit a bit about it and pick it up later. Then this 
would be on the back of the House to put it back in if that was necessary. The hearing was 
closed on SB 2024.  
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state 
departments and institutions; and to declare an emergency  
 

Minutes:                                                 No testimony submitted  

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2024. All committee members 
were present except Senator Gary Lee.  Larry Martin, OMB and Levi Kinnischtzke, 
Legislative Council were also present.  
 
Senator Dever:  Concerning the DAPL money at $13M and some dollars, there are two 
things in play, one is a law suit by the Attorney General and the other is the possibility that 
Congress might come through with some money. The BND offered an amendment that would 
have provided the same language that was in last time that it is the intent of the legislature 
to pay that at some point.  Then the BND came back and offered another amendment to say 
the same thing expect appropriate a $1M now to cover the interest so far accrued. I visited 
with Troy Seibel, the deputy of the Attorney General and he si going to visit with Wayne 
Stenejhem and then get back to me.  but the question in my mind is “Do we think that holding 
that open continues to provide some effect as a bargaining chip as far as Congress is 
concerned?”  Troy said he didn’t think it had any impact at all on the law suit. The possibility 
of Congress acting, and as you know, the current session of Congress started last month 
and ends a year from next December. (1.28)     
 
Chairman Holmberg: Any thoughts?  I thought we always wanted to hold back and not pay 
the loan itself.  
 
Senator Mathern: I would agree. This is a lot of money.  it’s a little bit of a game of chicken.  
I think we ought to keep it in as a loan.  Interest adds to the loan.   
 
Senator Dever: Regarding Congress, I don’t think it is a question of whether they would 
support it or not. It’s about the dysfunctionality of whether they do anything. The other thing 
that Troy mentioned is we have paid $25M.  They don’t think that would affect the law suit, 
either. (2.47) 
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Chairman Holmberg: I agree with Senator Mathern that we shouldn’t pay.  They will have 
an opportunity to make a case if we pass this bill with that money out. It can be dealt with in 
the House. (3.07) 
 
Senator Dever:  Can I assume then that it would be the sense of the committee that we 
should perhaps consider the amendment for the bank that would include the $1M in accrued 
interest which otherwise would appear on their accounts as delinquent. I’ll ask Adam to draft 
it that way and then the subcommittee can look at it.   
 
Senator Grabinger:  Are we going to separate the protest costs from the disaster costs and 
the emergency hay operation costs?   
 
Senator Dever: I think the disaster costs and hay operation are separate items.  I think the 
disaster has to do with flooding in the Turtle Mountains, wasn’t it?    
 
Senator Grabinger: Right. They are all put together here. 
 
Senator Dever: Because they were under the Adjutant General.  
 
Senator Grabinger:  Right. We need to separate them.  We’re going to pay those two, aren’t 
we?   
 
Senator Dever: Yes. Adam knows how to draft that.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Any other bills that are ready to go? The hearing was closed on SB 
2024.  
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Job #32511 (08:01) 
 

☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Alice Delzer/ Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A subcommittee hearing for the Deficiency Bill.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Proposed Amendment #19.0689.01002 
2. Email letter from Stan D. Benson  

 
 
Senator Dever called the subcommittee to order on SB 2024 at 10:30 in the Harvest Room.    
Let the record show that all subcommittee members were here: Senator Dever, Chairman, 
Senator Gary Lee and Senator Grabinger. Brady Larson, Legislative Council, and Renae 
Bloms, OMB, were also present.  
 
Senator Dever: We have only one unresolved issue regarding this bill: the DAPL protest 
money. We had an amendment prepared before (see attachment #1); subsequent to that, 
we received another email from the bank of North Dakota that asks that the obligation be 
transferred from the Adjutant General to the Attorney General and that the Bank of ND would 
like updated $1M of the interest appropriated in this session (see attachment #2). There are 
two approaches to trying to recoup the total investment. One is a lawsuit involving the 
Attorney General and the other is congressional action spearheaded by Senator Hoeven. 
The deficiency appropriation bill came to us asking that we pay it. We considered that, and 
the sense of the committee is that we should continue it as a negotiating point. The Attorney 
General says we’ve already paid $25M and the $13M is what we have left unpaid. However, 
they’re suing for the full amount, including any interest. My personal feeling is it doesn’t really 
make a lot of difference as a bargaining chip, but it seems to be the desire of the full 
appropriations committee that we leave that out there through the Bank of ND and only 
appropriate that $1M of interest. 
 
Senator Grabinger: That’s what I’m thinking too. I don’t necessarily agree with the 
committee because I don’t think the bargaining chip is there anymore. We paid $25M of it 
already; we’re just accruing interest. If we don’t get a settlement from the federal government, 
we’re going to pay that interest whereas we can pay it off now and not have that added debt. 
   
Senator Dever: We should put forward what the full committee can support.  
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Senator Gary Lee: We’re looking at the last paragraph, to add a section of statement of 
legislative intent and then change the dollar amounts?  
 
Senator Dever: I am looking at the email. 
 
Senator Grabinger: Essentially it would be amendment two with an additional million dollars 
and a move from the Adjutant to the Attorney. 
 
Senator Dever: Kelvin, have I accurately expressed this? 
 
(4:35) Kelvin Hullet, Market Manager for Government Programs, Bank of ND 
 
Hullet: Yes, I believe you have an accurately portrayed what we have provided to you. We 
had talked with the Adjutant General’s office about the amendment, and they were not sure 
they had the authorization to pursue repayment from the federal government which is why 
we had put the Attorney General into that line as opposed to the Adjutant General. Second 
if you look at deferring the DAPL repayment of that note then we would need to bring the 
interest current on that. Then we can carry it into the following biennium as a deficiency 
appropriation in the 2021-23 biennium. 
 
Senator Dever: My understanding is the Adjutant General requested that  it be transferred 
to the Attorney General. I visited with the Deputy Attorney General, and he did not express 
any opposition to that. 
 
Hullet: Yes, I believe that would make sense as we’re thinking about who’s pursuing 
repayment of the loan. 
 
 
Senator Grabinger: Made the motion to move the amendment as recommended. 
Senator Gary Lee: Seconds. 
 
Senator Dever: Brady, if we just substitute this language into the amendment that has 
already been drafted, 01002, that should do it.  That was confirmed.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken: 3 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
 
Senator Dever ends the subcommittee’s discussion on SB 2024.  
 
 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2024 
2/13/2019 

Job # 32641 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:   Rose Laning  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state 

departments and institutions; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.0689.01003 

 
Legislative Council: Adam Mathiak  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
 
Chairman Holmberg: called the committee to order on SB 2024. 
 
Senator Dever:  moved and explained amendment 19.0689.01003. 
He said the bill had been discussed previously, but the amendments drafted since involved 
the $13,224,000 from the DAPL related costs that are being placed in litigation by the 
Attorney General.  The desire is to continue to leave that but the BND has requested a million 
dollars from the general fund in the deficiency appropriation bill to cover accrued interest to 
this point.  The AG, in their lawsuit, is including the cost of interest in the lawsuit so that it 
could possibly be recovered as well.  It moves the obligation from the Adjutant General to the 
Attorney General. Section 2 was added of legislative intent. The AG is seeking 
reimbursement from the federal government and it is a loan authorized by the emergency 
commission.   That is language that the BND needs to have on the books.  
 
Senator G. Lee: Seconded the motion.  
Voice vote carried.  
 
Senator Dever: Moved Do Pass on SB 2024 as Amended.   
Senator Bekkedahl:  Seconded the motion.  
 

A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__14__   No:__0___   Absent:__0__.  
 
Senator Dever: will carry the bill. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2024. 
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Job # 32830 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning  

 

 Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state           
departments and institutions; and to declare an emergency.  

 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.0689.01004 

 
  Legislative Council:  Adam Mathiak  
  OMB: Larry Martin  

 
  Chairman Holmberg:  Opened the hearing on SB 2024. 
 
 
  Senator Dever: moved to reconsider the committee’s previous action.    
  Senator Robinson: seconded the motion.  
  Voice vote carried.  
 
Senator Dever: (Handed out amendment 19.0689.01004) After we passed the bill, 
Legislative Council determined that there was some minor language change in section 2 
which is on the back side of the amendment regarding legislative intent and cost 
reimbursements.  I will let Adam explain the change.  

 
Adam Mathiak: When we prepared the amendment originally, the very last sentence of      
section 2 was not included.  As we look back at last times deficiency bill which included 
similar language, the sentence didn’t specifically identify a legislative assembly, so we 
thought that there was an implied assumption that the intent carried through so this 
sentence is kind of duplicative and the century code exists as well so we basically had to 
remove it or not include it.  The bank felt it was necessary to have that last sentence added 
to section 2 so at their request, we added that in.  

 
Senator Dever: moved amendment 19.0689.01004. 
Senator G. Lee: seconded the motion. 
Voice vote carried.  
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Senator Mathern:  Expressed concern that an appropriation of $1M to the Bank of ND would 
be lost in a lawsuit?  How necessary is it to pay that? The bank won’t go bankrupt if we don’t 
pay that.  
 
Senator Dever: The deputy attorney general told me that they’re including interest in the 
lawsuit and they expect that if they’re successful that would be included.  The concern of the 
bank is that if they do not collect that interest, it will reflect in a negative way as it pertains to 
bank examiners. We own the bank but it’s still subject to regulation.    
 
Senator Mathern: A federal bank examiner will question the solvency of our bank? 
 
Senator Dever: If they have a loan out there that is not collecting interest. 
 
  
Senator Dever: Moved Do Pass on SB 2024 as Amended.  
Senator G. Lee:  seconded the motion.  
 

A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:_14__   No:__0__   Absent:__0__.  
  
Senator Dever carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2024. 



19.0689.01003 
lltle. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dever 

February 11, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert ''to provide a statement of legislative intent;" 

Page 1, line 6, after the second comma insert "and from special funds derived from federal 
funds," 

Page 1, line 8, replace "2021" with "2019" 

Page 1, replace lines 11 and 12 with: 

"Lawsuit expenses 
Total general fund 

Page 1, after line 22 insert: 

"BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Loan interest payments - protest costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 5." 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Total general fund 

. . . 

Page 2, line 5, replace "5." with 116. 11 

Page 2, replace lines 7 and 8 with: 

"Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 7. 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total all funds 
Less federal funds 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 8.11 

Page 2, replace line 10 with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total federal funds 
Grand total all funds 

Page No. 1 

$441,100 
$441,100" 

$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$887,823 
1,586,061 

$2,473,884" 

$265,000 
$265,000 

$50,000 
855,910 

$905,910 
855,910 
$50,000 

$6,049,984 
855,910 

$6,905,894 

19.0689.01003 



SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBURSEMENTS - LOAN 
REPAYMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that the attorney 
general seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of responding 
to unlawful activity associated with the construction of the Dakota access pipeline. It is 
further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that these reimbursements be 
used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by the emergency 
commission and the legislative assembly, which were obtained to provide the funding 
necessary to respond to the unlawful activity associated with the construction of the 
Dakota access pipeline." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the following changes: 

• Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Office of Management and 
Budget for lawsuit expenses by $33,100, from $408,000 to $441,100; 

• Appropriates $1,000,000 from the general fund to the Bank of North Dakota to pay the 
accrued interest on loans related to the unlawful activity associated with the 
construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant General for loan 
repayments for disaster-related costs by $13,224,205, from $15,698,089 to $2,473,884; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State Historical Society for 
litigation costs by $15,000, from $280,000 to $265,000; 

• Provides an appropriation from the general fund to the Attorney General for prosecution 
witness fees ($50,000) and provides an appropriation from federal funds to the Attorney 
G�neral for narcotics analyze�s and other �quJpment ($855,91 O); and 

• Adds a section to provide a statement of legislative intent related to repayment sources 
for loans obtained to provide the necessary funding to respond to the unlawful activity 
associated with the construction of the. Dakota Access Pipeline. 

In total, the changes decrease the deficiency appropriations from the general fund by 
$12,156,105, from $18,206,089 to $6,049,984. 

Page No. 2 19.0689.01003 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the Senate Appropriations Committee 

February 14, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide a statement of legislative intent;" 

Page 1, line 6, after the second comma insert "and from special funds derived from federal 
funds," 

Page 1, line 8, replace "2021" with "2019" 

Page 1, replace lines 11 and 12 with: 

"Lawsuit expenses 
Total general fund 

Page 1, after line 22 insert: 

"BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Loan interest payments - protest costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 5." 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Total general fund 

Page 2, line 5, replace "5." with "6." 

Page 2, replace lines 7 and 8 with: 

"Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 7. 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total all funds 
Less federal funds 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 8." 

Page 2, replace line 10 with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total federal funds 
Grand total all funds 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Page No. 1 

$441,100 
$441,100" 

$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$887,823 
1,586,061 

$2,473,884" 

$265,000 
$265,000 

$50,000 
855,910 

$905,910 
855,910 
$50,000 

$6,049,984 
855,910 

$6,905,894 

19.0689.01004 



SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBURSEMENTS - LOAN 
REPAYMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that the attorney 
general seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of responding 
to unlawful activity associated with the construction of the Dakota access pipeline. It is 
further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that these reimbursements be 
used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by the emergency 
commission and the legislative assembly which were obtained to provide the funding 
necessary to respond to the unlawful activity associated with the construction of the 
Dakota access pipeline. It is further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that 
the provisions of section 54-16-13 apply to the loans, except that emergency 
commission approval does not apply." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the following changes: 
• Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Office of Management and 

Budget for lawsuit expenses by $33,100, from $408,000 to $441,100; 
• Appropriates $1,000,000 from the general fund to the Bank of North Dakota to pay the 

accrued interest on loans related to the unlawful activity associated with the 
construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant General for loan 
repayments for disaster-related costs by $13,224,205, from $15,698,089 to $2,473,884; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State Historical Society for 
litigation costs by $15,000, from $280,000 to $265,000; 

• Provides an appropriation from the general fund to the Attorney General for prosecution 
witness fees ($50,000) and provides an appropriation from federal funds to the Attorney 
General for narcotics analyzers and other equipment ($855,910); and 

• Adds a section to provide a statement of legislative intent related to repayment sources 
for loans obtained to provide the necessary funding to respond to the unlawful activity 
associated with the construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline. 

In total, the changes decrease the deficiency appropriations from the general fund by 
$12,156,105, from $18,206,089 to $6,049,984. 

Page No. 2 19.0689.01004 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 15, 2019 12:22PM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_30_021 
Carrier: Dever 

Insert LC: 19.0689.01004 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2024: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2024 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide a statement of legislative intent;" 

Page 1, line 6, after the second comma insert "and from special funds derived from federal 
funds," 

Page 1, line 8, replace "2021" with "2019" 

Page 1, replace lines 11 and 12 with: 

"Lawsuit expenses 
Total general fund 

Page 1, after line 22 insert: 

"BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Loan interest payments - protest costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 5." 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Total general fund 

Page 2, line 5, replace "5." with "6." 

Page 2, replace lines 7 and 8 with: 

"Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 7. 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total all funds 
Less federal funds 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 8." 

Page 2, replace line 1 O with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total federal funds 
Grand total all funds 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

$441,100 
$441,100" 

$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$887,823 
1,586,061 

$2,473,884" 

$265,000 
$265,000 

$50,000 
855,910 

$905,910 
855,910 
$50,000 

$6,049,984 
855,910 

$6,905,894 

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBURSEMENTS - LOAN 
REPAYMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that the attorney 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_30_021 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_30_021 
Carrier: Dever 

Insert LC: 19.0689.01004 Title: 03000 

general seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of responding 
to unlawful activity associated with the construction of the Dakota access pipeline. It 
is further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that these reimbursements 
be used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by the emergency 
commission and the legislative assembly which were obtained to provide the funding 
necessary to respond to the unlawful activity associated with the construction of the 
Dakota access pipeline. It is further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly 
that the provisions of section 54-16-13 apply to the loans, except that emergency 
commission approval does not apply." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the following changes: 
Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Office of Management and 
Budget for lawsuit expenses by $33,100, from $408,000 to $441,100; 
Appropriates $1,000,000 from the general fund to the Bank of North Dakota to pay 
the accrued interest on loans related to the unlawful activity associated with the 
construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline; 
Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant General for loan 
repayments for disaster-related costs by $13,224,205, from $15,698,089 to 
$2,473,884; 
Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State Historical Society for 
litigation costs by $15,000, from $280,000 to $265,000; 
Provides an appropriation from the general fund to the Attorney General for 
prosecution witness fees ($50,000) and provides an appropriation from federal funds 
to the Attorney General for narcotics analyzers and other equipment ($855,91 O); and 
Adds a section to provide a statement of legislative intent related to repayment 
sources for loans obtained to provide the necessary funding to respond to the 
unlawful activity associated with the construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline. 

In total, the changes decrease the deficiency appropriations from the general fund by 
$12,156,105, from $18,206,089 to $6,049,984. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_30_021 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2024 
3/4/2019 

33135 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various 
state departments and institutions; to provide a statement of legislative intent. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1-3 

 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order, roll was taken and the bill’s title was read. First we 
will have the office of Management and Budget.  
 
Joe Morrissette, Director of Office of Management & Budget: I will address the items in 
subdivision 1 and subdivision 6 relating to the State Historical Society because they are related. The 
441 thousand that is in subdivision 1 is to pay the remaining balance on the judgment that was 
awarded to Comstock construction against the state of North Dakota relating to the Heritage Center 
expansion project.   
 
Chairman Delzer: Wasn’t there money in the budget for that?  
 
Mr. Morrissette: There was not, the judgment was 1.4 million awarded in November, there was 337 
thousand that had been retained, that was paid to Comstock in January 2018, there is a remaining 
balance of 408 thousand. Century Code 32-12-04 anytime there’s a judgement against that state 
OMB will make the payment but it has to be from an appropriation for that purpose.  
 
Chairman Delzer: What is the balance that you said?  
 
Mr. Morrissette: 441 thousand is the remaining balance, it’s 408 thousand and then there is interest 
of 2 ¼ percent. We figured it out to June 1st so if payment was made then it would be 441 thousand 
and we would make that payment as soon as possible and any interest saved would stay in the 
general fund.  
 
4:00 Section 6 for the Historical Society; it’s related because the 265 thousand that they are asking 
for is for legal fees and fees related to the arbitration that they have incurred.   
 
Chairman Delzer: Was there ever any turn back for that for the project? 
 
Mr. Morrissette: There was 337 thousand, but that was held from the appropriation and then paid to 
Comstock at the time that the judgment was awarded.   



House Appropriations Committee  
SB 2024 
March 4th 2019 
Page 2  
   

6:20 Chairman Delzer: The 441 is the first of June? How much a day is it?  
 
Mr. Morrissette: I will get that for you.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: Is the 265 that the historical society is asking for is that the extent of the 
legal work or is that in addition to work that is already been done?  
 
Mr. Morrissette: I think there was a small appropriation in the prior biennium and this is the remaining 
balance. There was an appropriation of 50 thousand last biennia.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Is this the total or is there interest on that as well? 
 
Mr. Morrissette: I will have to have someone from the Historical Society address that. 
 
Chairman Delzer: Next Tax Department.  
 
8:00-9:50 Sandy McMerty, Deputy Commission, Office of State Tax Commission: (see 
attachment 1)   
 
Chairman Delzer: What happens is you are high or low? 
 
Mrs. McMerty: If we are high those dollars would roll into the next biennium if we are low…. 
 
Chairman Delzer: How would they roll in? Is that in your tax commissioner’s budget?  
 
Mrs. McMerty: I would assume if there was a deficiency those two programs are individual lines I 
would have ask that question, right now if we short we would have to carry anything forward into the 
next year and pay that out.  
 
Chairman Delzer: If you were long I don’t think that would carry forward.  
 
10:30 Representative Kempenich: What was the numbers on the homestead tax credit?  
 
Mrs. McMerty: For applicants? There were 8,373 applicants in that program about 7.2 million in 2017 
 
Representative Kempenich: And for the veterans? 
 
Mrs. McMerty: 3,433 applicants in 2017, 4.1 million in that program.  
 
Chairman Delzer: What was the number for Homestead?  
 
Mrs. McMerty: 7.2, what happens in that one is if someone qualifies in the current year they often 
qualified the year prior and if they are new to the program they’ll ask for the prior year so it is a little 
harder to estimate. The upcoming biennium governor’s budget has 15.8 in the homestead line, we 
had asked for 16 million. Veterans’ we had asked for 9 million and the governor’s budget has 8.4 in 
it and that is how it was passed out of senate.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Further questions by the committee? Next up is the Industrial Commission. 
 
12:00 Robyn Loumer, Accounting Budget Specialist, Department of Mineral Resources: The 
industrial commission has ongoing litigation costs that started in the prior biennium, 1 million dollars 
was funded for the 2017/2019 biennium. The costs where higher than we anticipated and so the 1 
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million dollars was spent by January 2019, currently we do have outstanding bills that are waiting to 
be paid.   
 
Chairman Delzer: What are your outstanding bills? 
 
Mrs. Loumer: The bills haven’t been passed down to me yet from the attorney general’s office.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I would like to see those bills and find out if there is more outstanding litigation 
that there will be more bills for.  Next is the bank of North Dakota.  
 
13:30 Kelvin Hullet, Market Manager, Bank of North Dakota: Today is need to talk about 
subdivision 4 and then also section 2. These costs relate to the expenses related to the Dakota Asses 
Pipeline activities from two years ago. During the last session the adjutant general was authorized to 
take out a series of loans that totaled around 40 million dollars. There was a decision during the last 
legislative session to wait to repay those loans based on the thinking that there would be some money 
coming in from the federal level and some other sources. In fact, over the course of the biennium 
there was 25 million dollars that came in, 15 million of that from energy transfer partners and another 
10 million was provided as a federal grant to the adjutant general to help pay these costs. Today we 
have about 13 million dollars that are outstanding related to these expenses. In subdivision 4 we have 
requested 1 million dollars and in section 2 you will see is the legislative intent, in the senate 
appropriation committee it was discussed to carry these loans for two more years through this 
biennium in anticipation of any additional money being received and then we would pay them down 
at that point. The million dollars to the bring those loans current on the interest payments.  
 
15:25 Chairman Delzer: What is your interest rate on that? 
 
Mr. Hullet: It is what we call the government rate, which is 3.98.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Of that 25 you didn’t use any on interest?  
 
Mr. Hullet: on the 25 million we used 426 thousand related to interest. 
 
Chairman Delzer: If that was two years how is it that you are only at a million dollars now? When 
you were doing this 13 million compared to the 43?  
 
Mr. Hullet: We are doing an exact calculation, today it would be about 828 thousand dollars.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I would like to see the print out on how you find that, now the adjutant general.  
 
17:00-18:40 Cody Schulz, Deputy Director Department of Emergency Services: (see 
attachment 2)   
 
Chairman Delzer: Do you have a list for the 491 recipients?  
 
Mr. Schulz: I would be able to get that to you.  
 
20:15-22:00 Kathy Roll, Financial administrator, Office of the Attorney General (see attachment 
3)  
 
Chairman Delzer: Did you not have any room in your federal authority for the Opioid response?  
 
Mrs. Roll: We didn’t anticipate that grant at all so to get such a large amount we have not planned 
for that.  
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Chairman Delzer: You’re asking for 67.3 thousand instead of the 50? 
 
Mrs. Roll: That is correct. 
 
Chairman Delzer: And what do you have in your bill this time?  
 
Mrs. Roll: I believe it is the same, $95,056.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Should that be increased? Questions by the committee? Further testimony for SB 
2024? Any opposition? Seeing none we will close the hearing on SB 2024.  
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various 
state departments and institutions; to provide a statement of legislative intent. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Representative Schmidt I know you have something for SB 2024? Allen, could 
you research and see what is in URP and see if any of that could be used to repay the hay transport?  
 
Representative Schmidt: When we had the ag commissioner budget hearing we asked for some 
benefits to the program. He did have a hand out, it’s got 493 applications, 1 was denied, but we didn’t 
get any names of those recipients. Also with that I was under the understanding we were just paying 
for hay transport and but we also paid to transport livestock. Total miles of 43,562, eligible expense 
175 thousand 521 at $4.02 per mile average. I thought this was only for hay? 
 
Chairman Delzer: I did too. What did the ag commissioner have to say?  
 
Representative Schmidt: We will have to ask him further on that.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Did you ask him what the average pay for transporting hay was before the program 
and after? 
 
Representative Schmidt:  We did, I informed him that for my constituents the price of hay went up 
from $4 to $5/mile, the response was in some cases there was a lot of advantage taken and some 
cases there wasn’t. We did also discuss the value in that, I think we will take more of that when we 
dig deeper into his budget.  The last part is I asked him how are we going to pay for this and he didn’t 
have an answer for me.  
 
Chairman Delzer: He didn’t even have to show up and ask for the coverage in the deficiency 
appropriation.  
 
Representative Schmidt:  With respect to the environmental range protection fund, the 2019/2021 
biennium, the estimated ending balance is 4.2 million dollars. Since this benefited range land 
protection, I can’t see why we can’t use the ERP funds to pay these 1.5 million dollars.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Allen can you check and see if there are restrictions on that fund?  
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Allen Knudson, LC: The way that is set up you can use it for whatever you want.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Representative Schmidt, you’ll get an amendment drafted for that? With that we 
will close this meeting.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various 
state departments and institutions; to provide a statement of legislative intent. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Delzer: SB 2024 is the deficiency bill, the Office Management Budget was 408, 
Senate amended it and made it 441 thousand. The tax department is asking for 1.320 million, 
for Homestead Tax Credit and Disabled Veterans credit. Industrial Commission has litigation 
costs 500 million. (see attachment 1) They now think they would be able to make it with 
269,408.04, I guess we will have to short them 4 cents because we don’t ever go that far. 
Bank of North Dakota the loan interest payment for the protest costs at a million dollars, 
interest rate at 3.18.  Adjutant General is the disaster cost and the loan repayment for the 
emergency hay operation.   
 
Representative Schmidt: I have some amendments for that.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Historical society litigation costs of 265 thousand, Attorney General; 
Representative Vigesaa, do you know how much they are asking for in the prosecution 
witness fees this time?  
 
 Representative Vigesaa: We hear that bill in the morning.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Capital Assets is 855. We can take this bill up, let’s do two septate ones.  
 
 Representative Vigesaa: Motion  
 
Representative Brandenburg: Second 
 
Chairman Delzer: We have a motion at amend SB 2024, the 0300 version, line 22 is going 
from 500 thousand to 269,408. Any further discussion?  
 
Voice vote All in favor, Motion carries 
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6:15 Representative Schmidt: I have amendment number 19.0689.03001 and what this 
amendment is doing is using the Environmental and Range Protection fund, which is a 
balance of about 4.6 million dollars to make the payment for the hay transport that the 
emergency commission approved from the request of the governor and the ag commissioner. 
Legislative council put this together for me, page 1 line 7 after the second “funds” insert “and 
other income”. Page 2 replace line 8 with “Total all funds 2,473,844 less special funds 
1,586,061 for a total general fund of 887,823. Page replace line 22-24 with “grand total 
general fund of 4,233,331 grand total special funds of 2,441,971 for a total all funds of 
6,675,302. Section 2 special funds Environmental and Rangeland Protection Fund less 
special funds line items sub division 5 of section 1 of this act includes 1.586 from that fund. 
That is the amendment.   
 
Chairman Delzer: Have you guys looked far enough into the budget to see if any of this 
could come out of their budget, or are you open to reducing their budget some on this and 
still use ERP money?  
 
Representative Schmidt: I asked the commissioner how do they plan to pay for this? Rather 
than discussing it we just proceeded to use those funds.  
 
Representative Monson: We did work on the Ag commissioners budget today, that’s 
something we can look at.   
 
Representative Brandenburg: When you take that much money out of the fund what are 
we taking out?  
 
Representative Schmidt: What we found is that we had 4.6 in the budget, so they would 
have 3.1 remaining.  
 
Chairman Delzer: This comes from fees mostly on chemical, Representative Schmidt 
statement also helps protect the range land.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: Somebody is going to get shorted.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I don’t think this will short anything, the 4.6 was after everything they 
asked for in the budget.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: What was used last biennium of that fund?  
 
Brady Larson, Legislative Council: last biennium there was approximately 7 million dollars 
used from that fund. Beginning balance was 4.5 million and the ending was 4.4, so it’s 
generating about the same amount as what’s being spent.  
 
Chairman Delzer: The requested usage for his biennium is about the same? 
 
Mr. Larson, LC: Yes, 7.1 million.  
 



House Appropriations Committee  
SB 2024 
March 14th 2019 
Page 3  
   

Chairman Delzer: I have a real hard time with us having to use general fund and that ag 
commissioner got this without having to ask for the deficiency appropriation.  
 
Representative Schmidt: The other part is that we used the State Water Commission and 
Resources Trust fund money to provide pasture caps at 35 hundred dollars for each of those 
wells. So there was more than just the one program that helped the ranchers of North Dakota 
through the drought. 
 
Chairman Delzer: There are also other programs out there through commerce and other 
places to get help.  
 
12:35 Representative J. Nelson: The water taps that came out of the Resource Trust fund 
that program has been around awhile, in previous drought years, has that always been drawn 
from the trust fund or was that once taken from the Disaster Relief fund?  
 
Chairman Delzer: I think it was always in the water commission 
 
Representative Schmidt: The state water commission has increased that cost share from 
35 hundred 45 hundred. With that I move to adopt the amendment.  
 
Representative Monson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Is there any further discussion of the motion to adopt the amendment?  
 
Voice vote All in Favor, Motion Carries.  
 
Representative Schmidt:  Move Do Pass as Amended 
 
Representative Monson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion on the motion to move the amended bill. Seeing 
none we will call the roll.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:     19         Nay:   0          Absent:    2 
 
Motion carries, Representative Schmidt will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close the meeting on SB 2024 
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19.0689.03001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Schmidt 

March 5, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 7, after the second "funds" insert "and other income" 

Page 2, replace line 8 with: 

"Total all funds 
Less special funds 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace lines 22 through 24 with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total all funds 

$2,473,884 
1,586,061 
$887,823" 

$4,463,923 
2,441,971 

$6,905,894 

SECTION 2. SPECIAL FUNDS - ENVIRONMENT AND RANGELAND 
PROTECTION FUND. The less special funds line item in subdivision 5 of section 1 of 
this Act includes $1,586,061 from the environment and rangeland protection fund." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment changes the funding source for the loan repayment associated with an 
emergency hay operation from the general fund to the environment and rangeland protection 
fund . 

Page No. 1 19.0689.03001 



19.0689.03002 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations Committee 

March 14, 2019 

'Dr 3/lj//1 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 7, after the second "funds" insert "and other income" 

Page 1, replace lines 22 through 23 with: 

"Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace line 8 with: 

"Total all funds 
Less special funds 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace lines 22 through 24 with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total all funds 

$269,408 
$269,408" 

$2,473,884 
1,586,061 
$887,823" 

$4,233,331 
2,441,971 

$6,675,302 

SECTION 2. SPECIAL FUNDS - ENVIRONMENT AND RANGELAND 
PROTECTION FUND. The less special funds line item in subdivision 5 of section 1 of 
this Act includes $1,586,061 from the environment and rangeland protection fund." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment: 
• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Industrial Commission for 

litigation costs by $230,592, from $500,000 to $269,408. 

• Changes the funding source for the loan repayment associated with an emergency hay 
operation from the general fund to the environment and rangeland protection fund. 

Page No. 1 19.0689.03002 



Date: 3/1 4/20 1 9  
Roll C all Vote #: 1 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2024 

House Appropriations Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ,3000 L ine 22 ; 500 thousand to 269.408 thousand 

Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative Vigesaa Seconded By Representative Brandenburg 

Representatives 
Chai rman Delzer 
Representative Kempen ich 
Representative Anderson 
Representative Bead le 
Representative Bel lew 
Representative Brandenburg 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kreidt 

Representative Marti nson 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J. Nelson 

Representative Sanford 
Representative Schatz 
Representative Schm idt 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes No Representatives 

Representative SchobinQer 
Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 
Representative Holman 
Representative Mock 

No 

Voice Vote/Motion Carries 

Yes No 



Date: 3/1 4/20 1 9  
Rol l C al l  Vote #: 2 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2024 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 1 9 .0689.03001 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: IZI Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Schmidt Seconded By Representative Monson 

Representatives Yes No 
Chai rman Delzer 
Representative Kempen ich 
Representative Anderson 
Representative Bead le 
Representative Bel lew 
Representative Brandenburg 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kreidt 

Representative Marti nson 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J. Nelson 

Representative Sanford 
Representative Schatz 
Representative Schm idt 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment 

Representatives 

Representative Schobinger 
Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 
Representative Holman 
Representative Mock 

No 

Voice Vote/Motion Carries 

Yes No 



Date: 3/1 4/20 1 9  
Roll C all Vote #: 3 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2024 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

IZI Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
IZI As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Schmidt Seconded By Representative Monson --�----------- ___ ...,__ ________ _ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Cha i rman Delzer X 

Representative Kempen ich A 
Representative Anderson X Representative Schob inger X 

Representative Bead le X Representative ViQesaa X 

Representative Bel lew X 

Representative Brandenburg X 

Representative Howe X Representative Boe A 
Representative Kreidt X Representative Holman X 

Representative Marti nson X Representative Mock X 

Representative Meier X 

Representative Monson X 

Representative Nathe X 

Representative J .  Nelson X 

Representative Sanford X 

Representative Schatz X 

Representative Schm idt X 

Total 19 No 0 (Yes) ----------- ---------------
Absent 2 

Floor Assignment Representative Schmidt 

Motion Carries 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 15, 2019 11:34AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 46_005 
Carrier: Schmidt 

Insert LC: 19.0689.03002 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2024, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (19 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG). Engrossed SB 2024 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, l ine 7, after the second "funds" insert "and other income" 

Page 1, replace lines 22 through 23 with: 

"L itigation costs 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace line 8 with: 

"Total all funds 
Less special funds 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace lines 22 through 24 with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total all funds 

$269,408 
$269,408" 

$2,473,884 
1,586,061 
$887,823" 

$4 ,233,331 
2,441,971 

$6,675,302 

SECTION 2. SPECIAL FUNDS - ENVIRONMENT AND RANGELAND 
PROTECTION FUND. The less special funds line item in subdivision 5 of section 1 
of this Act includes $1,586,061 from the environment and rangeland protection fund." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment: 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Industrial Commission for 
litigation costs by $230,592, from $500,000 to $269,408. 

Changes the funding source for the loan repayment associated with an emergency 
hay operation from the general fund to the environment and rangeland protection 
fund. 
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Testimony in Support of Senate B i l l  No. 2024 

Joe Morrissette, Director 

� / 5/J d)O/), 'f 
I - IL/- - Jp/C( 

Office of Management and Budget 

January 14, 2019 

Cha i rman  Ho lmberg and  mem bers of the Senate Appropriat ions Com m ittee, I a m  Joe 
Morri ssette, D i rector of the Office of Ma nagement a nd Budget. I am here to testify i n  
support of Senate B i l l  N o .  2024 wh ich provides defic iency app rop riat ions to five 
d iffe rent agenc ies .  I wi l l  provide an overview of each request. Rep resentatives from 
each agency a re here to provide more deta i l  a nd  an swer specif ic questions .  

Office of Management and Budget 

fJ I 

The app ropriat ion i n  s ubd iv is ion 1 i s  $408,000 for the rema i n i ng  ba la nce i n  the 
judgement awa rded to Comstock Construction  aga i nst the state of North Da kota . North 
Da kota Centu ry Code Sect ion 32-12-04 req u i res that for a ny fi na l j udgement aga i nst the  
state, the Office of  Ma nagement and Budget wi l l  make payment from fu nds spec ifica l ly 
a pp ropr iated fo r the payment. Th i s  defic iency request is fo r the a pp ropriat ion to sat isfy 
the judgement awa rded to Comstock . 

• 
I n  Novembe r  2017, a j u ry awa rded Comstock Construct ion $1,395,264 re lat i ng to a 
d i spute over the i n sta l l at ion costs for l imestone pa ne l s  that we re pa rt of the He ritage 
Center expa ns ion p roject. Pu rsua nt to the j udgement, Comstock was i n it ia l ly pa id  
$337, 204 i n  J a n u a ry 2018 from moneys that had been reta i ned by the state . 

The state then i n it iated lega l proceed i ngs aga i nst the a rch itectu ra l  fi rms i nvolved i n  the 
project. I n  J a n u a ry 2018, the pa rt ies en l i sted the ass i sta nce of  a med iato r  a nd i n  J u ly 
2018 the a rch itectu ra l  fi rms agreed to a sett lement of $650,000. The fu nds  were 
rece ived a nd d istr i buted to Comstock in August 2018.  The rema i n i ng ba la nce is a bout 
$408,000, not i n c l u d i ng i nte rest. The judgement requ i res i nte rest to be accrued at the  
a n nua l  rate of  2 . 25%. 

The amou nt i n c l uded in th i s  d raft i s  i ncorrect as  it does not i nc l ude  accrued i nte rest. 
Consequent ly, the req uested amount w i l l  need to be adju sted to reflect i nte rest d ue  at 
the a n n u a l  rate of 2 . 25%. The exact date payment wi l l  be made i s  u n known but w i l l  be 
as  soon a s  poss ib l e  once the b i l l  is passed a nd s igned . I f  i nte rest i s  accrued th rough May 
3 1, 2019 a nd payment i s  made on J u ne 1, 2019, the est imated tota l a mount due  w i l l  be 
$441, 100 . 

• I request a n  a mend ment to SB 2024 to i ncrease the defic ie ncy app ropriat ion a mou nt by 
$33, 100, to a tota l of $441, 100 . Any i nte rest a mount not used beca use payment is made  
pr ior to  J u ne 1 w i l l  be  retu rned to  the genera l  fu nd .  
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Tax Department fj d.... 
Th is req uest i s  to meet defic iency needs i n  both the Homestead Tax Cred it a nd D isa b led 

Vete ra ns Cred it p rogra ms .  These p rogra ms p rovide property tax re l ief fo r qua l ify ing 

i nd iv id ua l s .  The Tax Depa rtment has  a respons ib i l ity to re imbu rse the cou nt ies fo r 

property tax reduct ions gra nted pu rsua nt to the progra ms .  There is  no a uthority fo r the 

depa rtment to with ho ld  re imbu rsement or  p rorate the a ppropr iated a mou nt, so they 

must req uest a defic iency if actua l  p rogram costs exceed a ppropriat ions .  

It was a nt ic i pated by the 2017 leg i s l atu re that  these amou nts cou l d  be i n suffic ie nt, a nd 

to he l p  m it igate that r i sk the agency was given a uthority to t ra nsfe r between the two 

l i nes to he l p  add ress a shortfa l l  i n  one p rogra m.  U nfortu nate ly, cu rre nt est imates 

i nd icate a shortfa l l  in both p rogra ms .  

The Homestead Tax Cred it a pp ropriat ion fo r 2017-19 is  $ 14 .8  m i l l i on  a nd just u nde r  $8 

m i l l ion  was  spent i n  the fi rst yea r .  The Tax Depa rtment i s  a nt ic i pat ing tota l 2017-19 

expend itu res of a pp roximate ly $16 m i l l io n .  The defic iency req uest fo r the Homestead 

Tax Cred it p rogra m i s  $ 1 . 17 m i l l io n .  

The D isa b led Vete ra ns' Cred it a pp ropriat ion for 2017-19 i s  $8, 1 10,200 a nd just ove r $4 

m i l l ion  was spent i n  the  fi rst yea r .  The Tax Depa rtment is a nt ic i pat ing tota l 2017-19 

expend itu res of a pp roximately $8 .3 m i l l io n .  The defic ie ncy req uest for the D isa b led 

Vete ra ns Cred it p rogra m is  $150,000 . 

I ndustria l  Commission 

The l it igat ion a pp ropriat ion to the I n du str ia l Commiss ion was $1 m i l l ion  for 2017-19 

b ie nn i u m .  Through Decembe r  3 1, 2018, $950,852 has been spent for l ega l costs 

i ncu rred i n  va r ious l ega l p roceed i ngs aga i n st the federa l  government re lated to the 

regu lat ion of o i l  a nd gas deve lopment a nd p roduct ion,  a case rega rd i ng the state's costs 

re lated to the Da kota Access P i pe l i n e  p rotests, Soru m vs. North Da kota rega rd ing 2017 

House B i l l  2 134 a nd a ba n kru ptcy p roceed i ng invo lvi ng an o i l  operator .  The Attorney 

Genera l ' s  Office has  reported to the Budget Sect ion th roughout the b ie n n i um  on  these 

costs . An add it iona l i nvo ice for over $57,000 has been rece ived a nd not yet pa id  

beca use the rema i n i ng ba l a nce i n  the a pp ropr iat ion is  on ly $49, 148 . 

The I n du str ia l Com m iss ion defic iency req uest is fo r a n  add it iona l $500,000. 

Adjutant General 

The defic ie ncy req uest fo r the Office of the Adjuta nt Genera l  i s  to repay Ba n k  of North 

Da kota loa ns  a nd accrued i nte rest re lat ing to DAPL protest costs, the Emergency Hay 

Tra nsportat ion p rogra m, a nd 2017 f lood costs not i nc luded i n  2017-19 a ppropriat ions 

from the State D isaste r Re l ief Fu nd .  The Adj uta nt Genera l  i s  he re to d iscuss proposed 
• 



SA JD cAij-
if! / - I L/ - J._D/ '7 

a mendments to su bd iv is ion 4 based on  recent loa n i nte rest rate i ncreases a nd  f3 3 
add it iona l expenses for d i saste r re lated projects that a re expected to be com p leted th i s  

b ien n i um  but  were not known at  the t ime SB  2024 was  s ubm itted . 

Historica l Society 

The defic iency req uest fo r the State H istorica l Society is $280,000 for lega l costs 

i ncu rred in re lat ion to the Comstock Construct ion lawsu it a nd re lated med iat ion 

expenses .  

M r . Cha i rman  a nd comm ittee mem be rs, th is  conc ludes my test imony. I ask you r  s upport 

fo r Senate B i l l  2024 with the requested a mend ments . I wou ld be ha ppy to a nswer a ny 

quest ions .  
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TESTI MONY OF 

MAJOR GENERAL ALAN S .  DOH RMAN N 

NORTH DAKOTA NAT IONAL G UARD 

BEFORE THE 
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SENATE APPROPRIAT IONS COMMITTEE 

1 4  JAN UARY 201 9 

SENATE B I LL 2024 

Good morn i ng Mr. Cha i rman ,  members of the comm ittee , I am Al Doh rmann ,  Adjutant 

Genera l  and D i rector of Emergency Services fo r the state of North Dakota . I am here 

today to testify i n  support of Subd ivis ion 4 of Senate B i l l  2024,  which conta i ns  three 
defic iency appropriations for the Office of the Adjutant Genera l  (OTAG) for loans obta i ned 
through the Bank of North Dakota (BN D) .  

F i rst, we wi l l  be asking that a l l  th ree amounts i n  Subd ivis ion 4 be revised based on  recent 

loan i nterest rate increases and add it iona l  expenses for d i saster re lated projects that we 

expect to be completed yet th is b ienn i um .  These changes were identified after SB  2024 
was d rafted . I wi l l  add ress these changes as I add ress our three loans i n  Subd ivis ion 4 .  

The fi rst amount of $488 ,822 is fo r the state cost share fo r the pres identia l ly  dec lared 

d isaster for 201 7 spri ng flood ing (DR 4323) .  Th is  d i saster i nc l uded the Turt le Mounta i n  

Ch ippewa Reservat ion and  the count ies o f  Benson ,  Botti neau ,  Cava l ie r, McHenry ,  

Renvi l l e ,  Ro lette , P ierce , Towner and Walsh . The tota l cost of th is  d isaster is  $6 , 749 ,833 

with an est imated state cost share of $ 1 , 06 1 , 504 .  Of this amount ,  we be l ieve an 
add it iona l  state share of $399 ,00 1 wi l l  be needed to pay for projects expected to be 

comp leted th is  b ienn ium and add it iona l  i nterest .  Therefore , we a re requesti ng that SB  
2024, page 2 ,  l i ne 1 be  i ncreased by  $399 ,001  to a tota l o f  $887 , 823 .  

The second item in  Subd ivis ion 4 is  $ 1 , 584 ,6 1 9  for fund i ng of  the North Dakota 

Department of Agricu ltu re 's (NDDOA) Emergency Hay Transportat ion Program .  Th is  

program provided grants to l ivestock prod ucers experienc ing hardsh ip  d ue to severe 

d rought cond itions i n  the state . The Emergency Comm iss ion approved fund i ng of th is  

program i n  August 20 1 7 i n  the amount of  $ 1 . 5  m i l l ion  i n  loan authority from the Bank of 
North Dakota . The ent ire loan amount was transferred to N D DOA. Accord i ng to N DDOA, 
49 1 g rants were awarded to prod ucers fo r a tota l of $ 1 . 5  m i l l i on .  We ask that the amount 

i n  l i ne  2 of page 2 of the b i l l  be increased by $ 1 ,442 to reflect add it iona l  i nterest that wi l l  
accrue through the end of the b ienn i um .  The new amount is  $ 1 , 586 , 06 1 . 

The th i rd amount i n  Subd ivis ion 4 is  $ 1 3 , 624,648 for Dakota Access P ipe l i ne ( DAPL)  

response costs . Th is amount reflects the rema in ing ba lance fo r the State agency and 
loca l response cost for the DAPL response from August 20 1 6 to March 20 1 7 . A l l  costs 
for po l it ica l  subd ivis ions ,  state agencies , and out of state agencies were processed 
through the OTAG . A tota l of $37 . 7  m i l l io n  was spent. Repayments tota l i ng $25 m i l l i on  

($ 1 0 m i l l ion  from a federa l  g rant ; $ 1 5 m i l l io n  from Energy Transfer Partners)  were made 
to the BND .  We have just recently rece ived two fi na l  b i l l i ngs tota l i ng $27 1 , 378 . 1 9  (from 
Supreme Court and I nd igent Defense) ;  th is  a long with add it iona l  i nterest caused by the 
rate increase , has i ncreased our  expense i n  l ine 4 of page 2 of SB 2024 to $ 1 3 , 9 1 2 , 806 .  

I ask  for you r  support o f  SB 2024 and  wi l l  stand by  for any questions that you may have .  

/J I  
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P ROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO S ENATE B I LL N O .  2024 

Page 2, l ine 1 ,  stri ke th rough "$488 ,822" ,  insert $887,823 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 2 ,  stri ke th rough " 1 , 584 ,6 1 9" , i nsert $1 ,586,06 1 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 3 ,  stri ke th rough " 1 3 ,624 ,648" , i nsert $1 3,9 1 2,806 

Page 2, l i ne 4, stri ke th rough "$1 5 ,698,089" , insert $1 6,386,690 

Renu m ber accord ing ly  

.. ., 
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Test imony for Senate B i l l  2024 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Monday, January 1 4  - 1 0 : 00 a .m.  

State H istorica l Society of North Dakota 
Andrea Wike , Ass istant Di rector of the State H istorica l Society 
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fJ I 
Chairman Holmberg and members of the committee , my name is Andrea Wike and I am the 

Assistant Di rector of the State H istorical Society . I am here today to present test imony regard ing 
a defic iency appropriat ion to the State H istorical Society of North Dakota . 

Heritage Center Expansion Litigation 

Senate B i l l  2024 provides a deficiency appropriation of  $280 , 000 for legal fees associated with 

l it igation re lated to the Heritage Center Expansion Project .  The general contractor, Comstock 
Construction ,  sued the state for their contract reta inage and other expenses, wh ich in the state 

lost the case and now owes Comstock. In the 201 7- 1 9 bienn ium, a deficiency appropriat ion of 
$50,000 was given in House B i l l  1 024 to the State H istorica l Society . As of December 3 1 , 20 1 8 , 
the agency has expended a tota l  of $287, 1 73 .77 in  l it igation fees from fisca l yea r  201 7 to 

present . The agency is request ing $260, 000 of defic iency appropriation authority in  Senate B i l l  
2024 i n  order to a l low for any revisions to that amount that  may come u p  . 



201 9  SENATE BILL 2024 - DEF IC IENCY APPROPRIATION 

SENATE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

PROSECUTION WITN ESS FEES AN D CAPITAL ASSETS 

KATHY ROLL,  F INANCIAL ADMIN ISTRATOR 
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NDCC Sections 27-20-49(2) and 31-01-16 require this office to reimburse prosecution witness 
fees and expenses for district court criminal cases and juvenile court cases. In July 2018, this 
office requested $100,000 from the Emergency Commission because the $95,056 appropriated 
for the 2017-19 biennium was completely spent. The Emergency Commission approved $50,000 
of the $100,000 request. This resulted in a new total for prosecution witness fee reimbursements 
of $145,056 for the 2017-19 biennium. 

As of January 10 , 2019 , the office has reimbursed prosecution witness fees of about $129,885, 
and had on hand another $21,435 in prosecution witness fee reimbursement requests. The 
number and amount of requested reimbursements for these costs have significantly exceeded 
the appropriated amounts. This request to be added to the deficiency bill is for $50 ,000 from the 
general fund for the remainder of the 2017-19 biennium. 

The office received a Public Health Opioid Crisis Response sub-award from the Department of 
Health for purchasing 15 Tru-Narc hand held narcotics analyzers (total cost is $455, 910) for each 
the Bureau of Criminal Investigation offices in the state and one for the Crime Laboratory. In  
addition the Crime Laboratory will be purchasing a Liquid Chromatography Mass Spectrometer 
($400 ,000) which analyzes the components of narcotics evidence submitted by law enforcement. 
This federal funds request is to add $855, 910 to the Office of Attorney General's capital assets 
line item for the 2017-19 biennium .  



• • • 
FUND 305 LITIGATION EXPENSES f rm1 c_ 0--d e,fl � r l 'ri e 
As of December 31 , 201 8 

75.00% Biennium Completed 

Pearson 

Hickey & Greenberg Greenberg Greenberg Greenberg Greenberg Christensen Ballard 

Evans Traurig Traurig Traurig Traurig Traurig & Clapp Spahr, LLC 

Federal BLM BLM ND RCRA ND Sorum 
Environmental  HF VF Methane Oi lfield FTCA vs. Enduro Monthly Litigation 

Regu lation Rule Rule Rule Wastes Claim ND Resources Total Balance 
Ju l- 1 7  $1 ,000,000.00 

Aug-1 7 $1 20 .00 $ 1 20.00 $999,880.00 

Sep-1 7 $22 ,075.03 $1 6 ,347.50 $ 1 7 ,274.83 $9,307 .50 $340.00 $65,344 .86 $934 ,535 . 1 4  

Oct- 1 7 $66.30 $24 ,982.90 $ 1 0,790.60 $30,498.87 $2 ,787.50 $69, 1 26. 1 7  $865,408.97 
Nov- 1 7  $ 1 3,277 .50 $34,059.69 $1 , 7 1 8 .38 $765.00 $49, 820. 57 $8 1 5,588.40 
Dec-1 7 $840.00 $46 ,336.22 $34,244.07 $470.00 $44,746.29 $1 1 ,7 1 7 .50 $ 1 38,354.08 $677,234 .32 
Jan-1 8 $0.00 $677 ,234.32 
Feb-1 8 $2 , 307 .34 $50 ,81 3 .82 $6,01 4 .90 $4 ,342 .50 $5,083 .34 $68 ,561 .90 $608,672.42 
Mar- 1 8  $1 4 ,796.39 $58 ,324 .44 $683.67 $1 9 ,998.50 $1 4 ,581 .64 $ 1 08,384.64 $500,287 .78 
Apr- 1 8 $240.00 $1 1 , 974.04 $35, 1 3 1 .88 $3,303 .91  $1 0 ,509.59 $23,690.67 $84 ,850.09 $41 5,437 .69 

May-1 8 $36,828.50 $36 ,828.50 $378,609 . 1 9  
Jun-1 8 $4,034 .20 $64, 1 35.69 $ 1 ,657 .50 $8,260.00 $37 ,881 .20 $40, 1 7 1 .26 $1 56 , 1 39.85 $222 ,469. 34 
Ju l- 1 8 $0.00 $222 ,469.34 

Aug-1 8 $1 , 573.39 $3,991 .88 $ 1 9,789.58 $8,679. 1 8  $34 ,034 .03 $ 1 88,435 .3 1  
Sep- 1 8  $468.30 $1 , 9 1 7 . 1 0  $467 .50 $30, 1 50.00 $1 3 ,907.24 $545.68 $47 ,455.82 $ 1 40,979.49 
Oct-1 8 $0.00 $1 40,979.49 
Nov- 18  $425.00 $32 ,596.40 $1 , 1 05 .00 $1 ,723.00 $34,985.74 $7 ,97 1 . 1 6  $78,806.30 $62, 1 73. 1 9  
Dec-1 8 $1 ,275.00 $3,5 1 5 .00 $4,892 .50 $3 ,342.50 $ 1 3 ,025.00 $49 , 1 48. 1 9  
Jan- 1 9  $0.00 $49, 1 48 . 1 9  

Feb-1 9 $0.00 $49 , 1 48. 1 9  

Mar- 1 9  $0.00 $49, 1 48. 1 9  
Apr- 1 9  $0. 00 $49 , 1 48 . 1 9  

May-1 9 $0.00 $49 , 1 48 . 1 9  
Jun- 1 9  $0.00 $49,148.1 9 Balance to Date 

$ 1 , 200.00 $1 1 8,608 .71  $360,060.37 $42,672 .83 $1 02,861 . 1 2  $ 1 44 ,087 .71  $ 1 64, 1 65 .05 $1 7 , 1 96 .02 $950,851 .8 1  
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Original New Change 

0 M B  408,000 441, 100 33, 100 4 ')__ orJ /J.:; c-7 f Tax 1 ,320,000 1,320,000 0 

I nd ustri a l  500,000 500,000 0 
Adjuta nt 15,698,089 16,386,690 688,601 f l S t/� ., 

H istorica l 280,000 265,000 ( 15,000) 
Attorney Genera l 905,910 905,9 10 
Tota l funds 18,206,089 19,818,700 1,612, 6 11  
Federa l funds  855,910 855,9 10 

Genera l fund 18,206,089 18,962,790 756,701 

f I 
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1 9.0689.01 00 1 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dever 

February 5, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BI LL NO. 2024 

Page 1 ,  line 6, after the second comma insert "and from special funds derived from federal 
funds," 

Page 1 ,  line 8, replace "2021 "  with "20 1 9" 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 1  and 1 2  with: 

"Lawsuit expenses 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Loan repayment - protest costs 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace lines 7 and 8 with: 

"Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 6 . 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total all funds 
Less federal funds 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace line 1 0  with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total federal funds 
Grand total all funds 

Renumber accordingly 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

$44 1 , 1 00 
$441 , 1 00" 

$887,823 
1 ,586,061 

1 3,91 2,806 
$1 6, 386,690" 

$265,000 
$265,000 

$50,000 
855,91 0  

$905,91 0 
855,91 0  

$50,000" 

$1 8,962,790 
855,9 1 0  

$ 1 9,81 8,700" 

This amendment provides for the following changes to agency deficiency appropriations: 
Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Office of Management and 
Budget for lawsuit expenses by $33, 1 00, from $408,000 to $441 , 1 00;  
Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant General for loan 
repayments for disaster-related costs by $688,60 1 ,  from $1 5,698,089 to $ 1 6, 386,690; 
Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State Historical Society for 
litigation costs by $1 5,000, from $280,000 to $265,000; and 

Page No. 1 1 9.0689 .01 001 

i i  

f I 



Provides an appropriation from the general fund to the Attorney General for prosecution 
witness fees ($50,000) and provides an appropriation from federal funds to the Attorney 
General for narcotics analyzers and other equipment ($855,910). 

The changes increase the deficiency appropriations from the general fund by $756,701, from 
$18,206,089 to $18,962,790. 

Page No. 2 19.0689.01001 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for J. .,  I I --/ q 1 9.0689.0 1 002 

Tit le. Senator Dever .A 1 . February 7, 201 9 11 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENT S  TO SENATE B ILL NO.  2024 

Page 1 ,  line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide a statement of legislative intent; "  

Page 1 ,  line 6 ,  after the second comma insert "and from special funds derived from federal 
funds, "  

Page 1 ,  line 8, replace "202 1 " with "20 1 9"  

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 1  and 12 with: 

" Lawsuit expenses 
Total general fund 

Page 2 ,  replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

" Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Total general fund 

Page 2 ,  replace lines 7 and 8 with: 

" Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 6. 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total all funds 
Less federal funds 
Total general fund 

Page 2 ,  replace line 1 0  with: 

"G rand total general fund 
G rand total federal funds 
G rand total all funds 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

$441 , 1 00 
$441 , 1 00" 

$887,823 
1 ,586,061  

$2 ,473,884" 

$265,000 
$265 ,000 

$50,000 
855,9 1 0  

$905 ,9 1 0 
855,9 1 0  

$50, 000" 

$5 ,049,984 
855,9 1 0 

$5,905, 894 

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBU RSEMENTS - LOAN 
REPAYMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that the 
department of emergency services seek reimbursement from the federal government 
for the costs of responding to unlawful activity associated with the construction of the 
Dakota access pipeline. It is further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that 
these reimbursements be used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by 
the emergency commission and the legislative assembly, which were obtained to 
provide the funding necessary to respond to the unlawful activity associated with the 
construction of the Dakota access pipeline." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 9.0689.0 1 002 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the following changes: 
• Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Office of Management and 

Budget for lawsuit expenses by $33, 1 00, from $408,000 to $441 , 1 00; 
• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant General for loan 

repayments for disaster-related costs by $ 1 3,224,205,  from $ 1 5,698,089 to $2 ,473,884; 
• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State Historical Society for 

litigation costs by $ 1 5 ,000, from $280 ,000 to $265,000; 
• Provides an appropriation from the general fund to the Attorney General for prosecution 

witness fees ($50,000) and provides an appropriation from federal funds to the Attorney 
General for narcotics analyzers and other equipment ($855,91 O); and 

• Adds a section to provide a statement of legislative intent related to repayment sources 
for loans obtained to provide the necessary funding to respond to the unlawful activity 
associated with the construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline. 

In total, the changes decrease the deficiency appropriations from the general fund by 
$ 1 3 , 1 56 , 1 05, from $1 8,206 ,089 to $5,049,984. 

Page No. 2 1 9.0689.0 1 002 
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Dever, Dick D. 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Dick, 

Benson, Sta n D .  
Thu rsday, Februa ry 7, 201 9 3 :20 PM 
Dever, D ick  D.  
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H a rdmeyer, Er ic  A.; Ste i nwa nd,  Todd J . ; Hu l l et, Ke lv in L. ; F i ne, Ka r lene K.; Dohrmann, A l an  
S . ;  Evanger, Ki rby L. 
RE: SB 2024 

If the 201 9  legislature chooses to defer fu l l  payment of loans pending federal reimbursement, the ND Department of 
Financial Institutions recommends to BND that any unpaid interest be paid or brought current prior to renewing the 
outstanding loans for the 201 9-2 1 biennium. As you wil l  see below, the Bank is also recommending for consideration an 
appropriation clause for 0MB to transfer $1 ,000,000 or as much as may be needed to bring accrued interest current no 
later than June 30, 201 9. Also in the Legislative Intent section below we have changed the wording slightly from what was 
sent yesterday so that the ND Attorney General is the entity seeking reimbursement on behalf of the Department of 
Emergency Services. This change was made as General Dohrmann has advised the Bank that the Department of 
Emergency Services does not have the authority to seek reimbursement from the federal government. As your sub­
committee reviews this proposed language, BN D is always available to assist or attend meetings at the sub-committees 
request. 

Thank you .  

Stanley Benson 
BND Legislative Coordinator 

Recommendations Follow: 
LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBU RSEMENTS - LOAN REPAYMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative 
assembly that the North Dakota Attorney General seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of 
responding to unlawfu l  activity associated with the construction of the Dakota access pipeline. It is further the intent of the 
sixty-sixth legislative assembly that these reimbursements be used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by 
the emergency commission and the legislative assembly, including al l  outstanding loans previously authorized by the 
emergency commission. It is further the intent of the legislative assembly that provisions of NDCC section 54- 1 6- 1 3 apply 
to the loans, except that emergency commission approval does not apply. 

Section 2. APPROPRIATION. The Office of Management and Budget shal l  transfer $1 ,000,000 towards accrued interest 
or so much as may be required from the state's general fund, not otherwise appropriated, to the Bank of North Dakota 
shou ld reimbursement by the federal government not be received by J une 30, 201 9. 

From: Dever, D ick D .  
Sent: Thursday, February 7 ,  2019  1 1 : 22  AM 
To: Benson, Sta n D .  <sbenson @ nd.gov> 
Cc: Hardmeyer, Eric A. <ehardmeyer@nd.gov>; F i ne,  Kar lene K. <kfi ne@nd.gov>; Steinwand, Todd J .  
<tste inwand@nd.gov>; H u l l et, Ke lv in L .  <k lhu l let@nd.gov>; M erke l ,  Kylee <kmerke l @ nd.gov>; Evanger, Kirby L. 
<keva nger@ nd.gov>; Porter, Tim C .  <tcporte r@ nd.gov>; Larsen, Rebecca <r larsen @ nd.gov> 
Subject: RE: SB 2024 

1 



1 9 . 0689 . 0 1 003 
Title . 

Prepared by the Leg is lative Counci l  staff for 
Senator Dever 

February 1 1 ,  20 1 9  ;:/P{ SB J oJf 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO.  2024 ;) -/3 -1 1  
!JI Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  after the sem icolon insert "to provide a statement of leg is lative intent; " 

Page 1 ,  l ine 6 ,  after the second comma insert "and from specia l  funds derived from federa l  
funds , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  8 ,  rep lace "202 1 " with "20 1 9" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 1  and 1 2  with : 

"Lawsu it expenses 
Total genera l  fund 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 22 insert:  

"BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Loan interest payments - protest costs 
Total genera l  fund 

Subd iv is ion 5 . " 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 1 through 4 with : 

"Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Total genera l  fund 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 5 ,  rep lace "5 . " with "6 . "  

Page 2 ,  replace l i nes 7 and 8 with : 

"Lit igation costs 
Total genera l  fund 

Subd ivis ion 7. 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total a l l  funds 
Less federa l  funds 
Total genera l  fund 

Subd ivis ion 8 . "  

Page 2 ,  replace l i ne 1 0  with :  

"Grand total genera l  fund 
Grand total federal funds 
Grand total a l l  funds 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Page No. 1 

$441,1 00 
$441 , 1 00" 

$1 ,000,000 
$ 1 ,000 , 000 

$887, 823 
1 ,586.06 1 

$2 ,473 , 884" 

$265.000 
$265 , 000 

$50, 000 
855,9 1 0  

$905, 9 1 0 
855,9 1 0  
$50 , 000 

$6 ,049, 984 
855.9 1 0  

$6 ,905, 894 

1 9 . 0689 .0 1 003 



SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBURSEMENTS - LOAN tJ-. •  1 3  - J C,  
REPAYMENTS. I t  is the intent of the sixty-sixth leg islative assembly that the attorney 
genera l  seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of respond ing /j J.. 
to un lawfu l activity associated with the construction of the Dakota access p ipel ine. It is 
further the intent of the sixty-sixth leg islative assembly that these reimbursements be 
used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by the emergency 
com mission and the leg islative assembly, which were obtai ned to provide the funding 
necessary to respond to the un lawful activity associated with the construct ion of the 
Dakota access pipel ine . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the fol lowing changes: 
• I ncreases the appropriat ion from the general fund to the Office of Management and 

Budget for lawsu it expenses by $33, 1 00 ,  from $408, 000 to $441 , 1 00 ;  

• Appropriates $ 1 , 000 , 000 from the general fund to the Bank of North Dakota to pay the 
accrued interest on loans related to the unlawful  activity associated with the 
construct ion of the Dakota Access Pipel ine ;  

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant Genera l  for loan 
repayments for d isaster-related costs by $1 3 ,224,205,  from $ 1 5 ,698, 089 to $2,473,884; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State H istorical Society for 
l it igation costs by $ 1 5 , 000, from $280, 000 to $265, 000;  

• Provides an appropriat ion from the general fund to the Attorney Genera l  for prosecution 
witness fees ($50, 000) and provides an appropriation from federa l  funds to the Attorney 
Genera l  for narcot ics analyzers and other equ ipment ($855 , 9 1  O); and 

• Adds a sect ion to provide a statement of leg islative intent related to repayment sources 
for loans obtai ned to provide the necessary funding to respond to the un lawfu l activity 
associated with the construction of the Dakota Access Pipel ine .  

In  tota l ,  the changes decrease the deficiency appropriat ions from the general fund by 
$ 1 2 , 1 56 , 1 05 ,  from $ 1 8 ,206, 089 to $6, 049, 984 . 

Page No. 2 1 9 . 0689 .0 1 003 



19.0689.01004 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the Senate Appropriations Committee 

February 1 4, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BI LL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide a statement of legislative intent;" 

Page 1 ,  line 6, after the second comma insert "and from special funds derived from federal 
funds," 

Page 1 ,  line 8 ,  replace "2021" with "2019" 

Page 1, replace lines 1 1  and 12 with: 

"Lawsuit expenses 
Total general fund 

Page 1, after line 22 insert: 

"BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Loan interest payments - protest costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 5."  

Page 2 ,  replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Loan repayment - disaster costs 
Loan repayment - emergency hay operation 
Total general fund 

Page 2, line 5, replace "5." with "6." 

Page 2, replace lines 7 and 8 with: 

"Litigation costs 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 7. 

Prosecution witness fees 
Capital assets 
Total all funds 
Less federal funds 
Total general fund 

Subdivision 8." 

Page 2, replace line 10 with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total federal funds 
Grand total all funds 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Page No. 1 

$441,100 
$441, 1 00" 

$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$887,823 
1,586.061 

$2,473,884" 

$265,000 
$265,000 

$50,000 
855,910 

$905,910 
855,910 
$50,000 

$6,049,984 
855,910 

$6,905,894 

19.0689.01004 



SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - COST REIMBURSEMENTS - LOAN 
REPAYMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that the attorney 
general seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of responding 
to unlawful activity associated with the construction of the Dakota access pipeline. It is 
further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that these reimbursements be 
used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by the emergency 
commission and the legislative assembly which were obtained to provide the funding 
necessary to respond to the unlawful activity associated with the construction of the 
Dakota access pipeline. It is further the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly that 
the provisions of section 54-16-13 apply to the loans, except that emergency 
commission approval does not apply. " 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides for the following changes: 
• Increases the appropriation from the general fund to the Office of Management and 

Budget for lawsuit expenses by $33,100, from $408,000 to $441,100; 
• Appropriates $1,000,000 from the general fund to the Bank of North Dakota to pay the 

accrued interest on loans related to the unlawful activity associated with the 
construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the Adjutant General for loan 
repayments for disaster-related costs by $13,224,205, from $15,698,089 to $2,473,884; 

• Decreases the appropriation from the general fund to the State Historical Society for 
litigation costs by $15,000, from $280,000 to $265,000; 

• Provides an appropriation from the general fund to the Attorney General for prosecution 
witness fees ($50,000) and provides an appropriation from federal funds to the Attorney 
General for narcotics analyzers and other equipment ($855,910) ; and 

• Adds a section to provide a statement of legislative intent related to repayment sources 
for loans obtained to provide the necessary funding to respond to the unlawful activity 
associated with the construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline. 

In total, the changes decrease the deficiency appropriations from the general fund by 
$12,156,105, from $18,206,089 to $6,049,984. 

Page No. 2 1 9 .0689 .0 1 004 
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Office of State Tax Commissioner Testimony on SB2024 
March 4, 201 9 

House Appropriations Committee 
Rep.  Jeff Delzer, Chairman 
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Sandy McMerty - Deputy Commissioner, Office of State Tax Commissioner 

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Sandy McMerty and I 
serve as Deputy Commissioner for the Office of State Tax Commissioner. I am here today to speak 
in favor of SB2024 with regards to the requests for the Homestead Tax Credit and Disabled 
Veteran's Credit programs which provide property tax relief to qualifying individuals. 

The Office of State Tax Commissioner has a responsibility to reimburse the counties for property 
tax reductions granted pursuant to the programs. We have no authority to withhold reimbursement 
or prorate the appropriated amount, so we must request a deficiency if actual program costs 
exceed appropriations . 

It was anticipated by the 2017 legislature that these programs may have insufficient funding, and to 
help mitigate that risk we were given authority to transfer between the two lines to help address a 
shortfall in one program. Unfortunately, current estimates indicate a shortfall in both programs, 

The Homestead Tax Credit appropriation for 2017-19 is $14.8 million and just under $8 million was 
spent in the first year. We are anticipating a total of approximately $16 million for the 2017-2019 
biennium for this program. The deficiency request for the Homestead Tax Credit program is $1.17 
million. 

The Disabled Veterans' Credit appropriation for 2017-2019 is $8,110,200 and just over $4 million 
was spent in the first year. We are anticipating total 2017-2019 expenditures of approximately $8.3 
million. The deficiency request for the Disabled Veterans' Credit program is $150,000. 

We ask for your continued support of these programs, and your support of the deficiency request 
for $1.17 million for the Homestead Tax Credit program, and an additional $150,000 for the 
Disabled Veteran's Credit program. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, thank you for allowing me to visit with you today. 
This concludes my testimony and I am happy to answer any questions . 

I 
WWW.ND.GOV/TAX I TAXINFO@ND.GOV 

600 E. BOULEVARD AVE. , DEPT 1 27 I BI SMARCK, ND 58505-0599 
70 1 .328.7088 I FAX 70 1 .328.3700 I H EARI NG/SPEECH IMPAI RED: 800.366.6888 N o  R T  H D A  K o  T A  



Test imony - SB 2024 
House Appropriations Comm ittee 

March 4 ,  20 1 9  
By Cody Schu lz 

Deputy D i rector, Department of Emergency Services 
D i rector, Divis ion of Homeland Security 

Cha i rman Delzer and members of the House Appropriations Committee , my name is 
Cody Schu lz .  I am the Deputy D i rector of the Department of Emergency Services (DES) 
and D i rector of the Homeland Security Divis ion . I offer th is testimony i n  support of 

Subd iv is ion 5 of Senate B i l l  2024 , which conta ins two defic iency appropriations for the 
Office of the Adjutant Genera l  (OTAG) for loans obta ined through the Bank of North 
Dakota (BND) .  

The fi rst amount of $887 , 823 is for the  state cost share for the president ia l ly declared 
d isaster for 20 1 7  spr ing flood ing  (DR 4323) . This d isaster included the Turtle Mounta i n  
Ch i ppewa Reservation and the counties of Benson , Bott ineau ,  Caval ier , McHenry ,  
Renvi l l e ,  Rolette , Pierce , Towner  and Walsh .  The tota l cost of  th is  d isaster is $6 , 749 , 833 
with an est imated state cost share of $ 1 , 078,473 . Of th is amount ,  we are estimati ng 
approximately $887,823 wi l l  be pa id i n  th is b ienn ium to inc lude i nterest. 

The second item in Subd ivis ion 5 is $ 1 , 586 , 06 1  for fund ing of the North Dakota 
Department of Agricu ltu re 's (N DDOA) Emergency Hay Transportation Progra m .  Th is  
p rogra m  provided grants to l ivestock producers experienc ing hardsh ip due to severe 
d rought  cond it ions in  the state . The Emergency Commission approved fund ing  of th is  
p rogra m  i n  August 20 1 7  i n  the amount of  $ 1 . 5  m i l l ion i n  loan authority from the Bank  of 
North Dakota . The entire loan amount was transferred to NDDOA. Accord ing to N DDOA,  
49 1 g rants were awarded to  p roducers for a tota l of $ 1 . 5  m i l l i on .  

Both of  these items are funded with general funds and are estimated . Any rema in i ng  
fund i ng not used to repay these two loans wi l l  be  retu rned to  the general fund . 

I ask for you r  support of SB  2024 and wi l l  stand by for any questions that you may have . 

I 
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201 9  ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL 2024 - DEFIC IENCY APPROPRIATION 

HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

OFF ICE OF ATTORN EY GENERAL 

PROSECUTION WITN ESS FEES AN D CAPITAL ASSETS 

KATHY ROLL, F I NANC IAL ADMI N ISTRATOR 
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NDCC Sections 27-20-49(2) and 31-01-16 require thi s  office to reimburse prosecution witness 
fees and expenses for d istrict court criminal cases and juvenile court cases. In July 2018, this 
office requested $100,000 from the Emergency Commission because the $95,056 appropriated 
for the 2017-19 biennium was completely spent. The Emergency Commission approved $50,000 
of the $100,000 request . This  resulted in a new total for prosecution witness fee reimbursements 
of $145,056 for the 2017-19 biennium. 

As of March 1, 2019, the office has reimbursed prosecution witness fees of $129,885, and had 
on hand another $50,000 in prosecution witness fee reimbursement requests. The number and 
amount of requested reimbursements for these costs have significantly exceeded the 
appropriated amounts. This  request i s  to increase the deficiency bill request to $67,300 from the 
general fund for the remainder of the 2017-19 biennium . 

The office received a federal Public Health Opioid Cri sis Response sub-award from the 
Department of Health for purchasing 15 handheld narcotics analyzers (total cost i s  $455,910) for 
each the Bureau of Criminal Investigation offices in the state and one for the Crime Laboratory. 
In add ition the Crime Laboratory will be purchasing a Liquid Chromatography Mass Spectrometer 
($400,000) which analyzes the components of narcotics evidence submitted by law enforcement. 
This  federal funds request i s  to add $855,91 O to the Office of Attorney General's capital assets 
line item for the 2017-19 biennium. 



201 7-1 9 Bienn ium Industria l  Commission Litigation Costs 
Quarterly Report for the· Budget Section - Office of Attorney Gene·ra l 

December 3, 201 8 

Bureau of Lan d  
Management 
Hydraul ic Fracturing 
Rule 

RCRA Oilfield Wastes 
Citizen Suit 

CAPTION 
· State of Wyomirig; 
State of Colorado, 
Independent Petroleum 
Associatio_n of America, 
Western Energy 
Alliance 
V. 

U.S.  Department of 
Interior, and U.S. 
Bureau of land 

Management 

·suMMARY STATUS 
North Dakota intervened in a On September 2.1 , 2017 ,  1 0th 
complaint Wyoming filed against Circuit Court of Appeals issued 
the DOI and BLM wherein a decision that, "dismissed 
Wyoll'ling is seeking an Order these appeals as prudentially 
from the court declaring the Final unripe, VACATED the district 
Rule entitled ·oil and Gas; court's judgment invalidating 
Hydraulic Fracturing on Federal the Fracking Regulation, and 
and Indian Lands: 80 Fed. Reg. REMANDED with instructions 
1 6 1 2 8  (Mar. 26, 2 0 1 5) (to be to dismiss the underlying action 
codified at 43 C .F .R .  Part 3 1 60) without prejudice." On 
c·Fracking Rule·) violates the APA November 3, 2017 ,  NO along 
and SOWA and asks the coUrt to with Utah, Colorado & 
vacate the Final R ule. All of.the ·Wyoming, filed a request for 
Plaintiffs, including North Dakota, panel rehearing and/or 
have filed 01otions for temporary rehearing en bane.of the 
restraining orders lo halt the September 2 1 .  2017 ,  .decision · 
BLM's finat role regulatirlg. specifically, ihe states • 
Frackjng. reque.sted· ihe court review 
This case is pro�eding two.fold. .wheth,er fhe Co_u·rt pl'0per1y 
The. Defendants appe�led the ordered vaC8tur Of the district 
granting of t�e ·preli"mirlary ,C9Urt decision. . . 
injunction to the 1.0th Circuit. and The"request for .en .bane review 
this issu�is being_ briefed. The :was denied. on -December 29, 
Industry Appellees' alternative 2017  BLM :promUlgai�d a final 
Motion for a Stay was denied. rule resciriding the -Hydraulic 

Fracturing Rule. On February 
7, 201 8 North Dakota filed a 
motion to dismiss the appeal on 
the ground that it is now moot 
and for lack of jurisdiction. 

In  June 2018 ,  the 1 0th Circuit 
Court of Appeals denied North 
Dakota's motion to dismiss. In 
December 2017 ,  the Bureau of 
Land Management finalized a 
rule to rescind the 2015  rule. 
As predicted, the rescission 
has challenged by 
Califomia/NGOs. Wyoming, 
IPAA, API, and WEA have 
already intervened on the 
side of BLM, defending the 
rescission. The scheduling 
order has CA/NGOs' motions 
for summary judgment due 
on Wednesday, February 6, 
2019,  with BLM's response 
due April 8, 201 9, and 
defendant·intervenors' 
response due April 29, 2019.  

COURT 

U.S .  District Court for 
the District of 
Wyoming, 
No. 5:  1 5-cv-00043 
and the 1 0th Circuit 
Court of Appeals, 
No. 1 6-8068 

Environmental Integrity 
Project; Natural 
Resources Defense, 
Earthwor1ts, Center for 
Health, Environment, 
and Justice; West 
Virginia Citizen Action 
Group d/b/a West 
Virginia Surface 
Owners' Rights 
Organization; 
Responsible Drilling 
Alliance; and San Juan 
Citizens Alliance 

The Court approved a consent U.S. District Court for 

V. 

Gina McCarthy, in her 
official capacity as 
Administrator, United 
State Environmental 
Protection Agency 

The Plaintiffs, a group of 
environmental organizations, filed 
this suit against EPA to compel 
EPA to review and revise Subtitle 
D guidelines of the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act 
(RCRA) that relate to oil and gas 

decree EPA negotiated with the the District of 
Plaintiffs. North Dakota has Columbia, 
appealed both the approval of No. 1: 1 6·CV·00842 
the consent decree and the 
denial of the state's motion to 
intervene. Oral arguments are 
scheduled for November 1 1 ,  
2017 .  O n  November 28,  201 7 
the O.C. Circuit Court of 

waste. The statutory provisions Appeals issued an opinion 
require EPA to conduct a review denying North Dakota's appeal. 
of its RCRA solid waste North Dakota's appeal was 
regulations and state solid waste denied by the D.C. Circuit of 
management guidelines. North Appeal on November 28, 20 17  
Dakota has received primacy from and  North Dakota d id  no t  file a 
EPA to regulate oil and gas waste. writ. This case has 
This lawsuit threatens to disrupt concluded. 
state regulations over oil and gas 
waste. 

SB 2024 

March 14th 2019 
Attachment 
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Quarterly Report for the Budget Section - Office of Attorney Genera l  

December 3 ,  201 8 

Methane Rule 

Sorum et a l  vs. State 
of NO et a l  

Sorum et a l  vs.  State 
of ND et al  
(continued) 

CAPTION SUM MARY STATUS COURT 

State of North Dakota v. North Dakota initiated a Petition 
U .S .  EPA for Review of a final rule issued 

by the United States EPA entitled 
·oil and Natural Gas Sector: 

An executive order was signed U .S .  Court of Appeals 
in April, 2017 ,  directing EPA to for the District of 
review this rule. The parties Columbia, 
are now conferring whether this No. 1 6- 1 242 
case should be held in 

Paul Sorum,  Marvin 
Nelson, Michael 
Coachman, Char1es 
Tuttle and Lisa Marie 
Omlid, each on behalf 
of themselves and all 
other similarly situated 
tax payers of the State 
of North Dakota, v. 
The State of North 
Dakota et al 

Paul Sorum, Marvin 
Nelson, Michael 
Coachman, Charles 
Tuttle and Lisa Marie 
Omlid, each on behalf 
of themselves and al l  
other similarly situated 
tax payers of the State 
or North Dakota, v. 
The State of North 
Dakota et al 

Emission Standards for New, 
Reconstructed, and Modified 
Sources: Final Rule: North 
Dakota is challenging this 
rulemaking on the grounds that it 
goes beyond the bounds 
established by the US 
Constitution, is arbitrary, 
capricious, an abuse of discretion 
and not in  accordance with the 
law. North Dakota requests that 
Court hold the rule unlawful and 
set it aside. 

abeyance pending that review 
and potential rulemaking. 
December 1, 2017 - no change 
March 1, 2018 - no change 
June 29, 2018 - no change 
November 30, 201 8 - EPA 
recently proposed several 
amendments to the Rule 
addresssing fugitive 
emissions requirements, 
pneumatic pump standards, 
and the requirements for 
certification of closed vent 
systems by a professional 
engineer. The deadline for 
submitting comments to this 
proposed rule is December 
1 7, 2018. 

The Plaintiffs argue that the The Defendants have moved to East Central Judicial 
Legislature, by passing Senate dismiss the Plaintiffs' case District Court, Fargo, 
Bill 2 1 34 ,  codified at N .D.C.C.  ch. because they have failed to join N D  09-201 8-CV-00089 
6 1 -33. 1 ,  has violated the public indispensable parties. The 
trust doctrine and the anti-gift � motion was denied.The 
N .D .  Const. art. X, § 1 8), equal Plaintiffs filed a motion for 
protection � N.D. Const. art. I ,  Preliminary Injunction, which 
§ 2 1 ), and special law � N.D. was granted in part and denied 
Const. art. IV, § 1 3) clauses of the in part. The Court was not 
North Dakota Constitution. The convinced that Plaintiffs' case 
Plaintiffs are claiming that the going forward would be 
legislation results in the unlawful successful, and denied the 
transfer of •approximatety $1 .96 injunction in part. The Court did 
bill ion in  cash and State-owned have concerns relating to the 
sovereign lands from the citizens retroactive nature of the law, 
of the State . to a small group and enjoined the Land Board 
of private parties in  westem North from distributing certain items 
Dakota: Plaintiffs allege of revenue received before the 
N.D.C.C.  ch. 6 1 -33 . 1  "disclaims enactment of the law. The 
{the State's] perpetual rights to all parties are currently working on 
mineral rights under Lake a joint stipulation of facts. On 
Sakakawea, a total of about September 2 1 ,  2017, 1 0th 
1 08,000 mineral acres.•  Circuit Court of Appeals issued 

a decision that, Ndismissed 
these appeals as prudentially 
unripe, VACATED the district 
court's judgment invalidating 
the Fracking Regulation, and 
REMANDED with instructions 
to dismiss the underlying action 
without prejudice." On 
November 3,  2017, N D  along 
with Utah, Colorado & 

Wyoming, filed a request for 

The Plaintiffs argue that the panel rehearing en bane of the 
Legislature, by passing Senate September 2 1 ,  2017 ,  decision -
Bil l 2 1 34 ,  codified at N .O.C.C. ch. specifically, the states 
6 1 -33. 1 ,  has violated the public requested the court review 
trust doctrine and the anti-gift � whether the Court properly 
N .D .  Const. art. X, § 1 6) ,  equal ordered vacatur or the district 
protection � N.D .  Const. art. I, court decision. 

U.S. District Court for 
the District of 
Wyoming, No. 1 5-
8 1 26 and the 1 0th 
Circuit Court of 
Appeals, No. 1 6-8068 

§ 2 1 ) ,  and special law � N.D. The request for en bane review 
Const. art. IV, § 1 3) clauses of the was denied. On December 29, 
North Dakota Constitution. The 2017  BLM promulgated a final 
Plaintiffs are claiming that the rule rescinding the Hydraulic 
legislation results in  the unlawful Fracturing Rule. On February 
transfer of ·approximately $ 1 .96 7, 20 1 8  North Dakota filed a 
bill ion in  cash and State-owned motion to dismiss the appeal on 
sovereign lands from the citizens the ground that it is now moot 
of the State . . .  to a small group and for lack of jurisdiction. 
of private parties in  western North 9/1 0/2016  - The parties have 
Dakota . "  Plaintiffs allege each submitted proposed set of 
N . D.C.C. ch. 61-33 . 1  "disclaims undisputed facts to the court, 
(the State's] perpetual rights to all and the court has set a briefing 
mineral rights under Lake schedule for summary 
Sakakawea, a total of about judgment (SJ). Oral argument 
1 08 ,000 mineral acres: will be held on the SJ motion 

in Fargo on January 4, 2019.  

SB 2024 
Ma rch 14th 2019 

Attachment � 
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December 3,  201 8 

CAPTION SUMMARY STATUS COURT 

Litigation Related to "Litigation consultation" 

The State has filed an 
administrative notice of claim 
with the United States Corps of 
Engineers. The U .S. Army 
Corps acknowledged receipt of 
North Dakota's FTCA claim as 
of July 23, 20 1 6 .  The USACE's 
six-month response deadline 
is January 23, 2019.  

Dakota Access related to Dakota 
Pipeline Protests Access Pipeline 

Bureau of Land 
Management 
Venting/Flaring Rule 

State of Wyoming et al North Dakota intervened in a The Court has issued U.S.  District Court for 
v. United States complaint Wyoming and Montana scheduling order for merits the District of Wyoming 
Department of Interior filed against the DOI and BLM briefing but has postponed No. 2 : 1 6-cv-00285-
et al wherein Wyoming and Montana deadlines several times on the SWS and the 1 0th 

are seeking an Order from the request of BLM to allow it more Circuit Court of 
court declaring the Final Rule to file it's ru1emaking to suspend Appeals No . 1 8-8068 
entitled "Waste Prevention, Venting and Flaring Rule. 
Production Subject to Royalties, BLM (and the states and other 
and Resources Conservation: intervening parties on BLM's 
Final Rule," 8 1  Fed. Reg. 83 ,008 sides) must fi le its merits brief 
(Nov. 1 8 , 2016) ("Venting Rule") on December 1 1 ,  2017 .  The 
violates the APA and CAA and Industry Groups filed a renewed 
asks the court to vacate the Final motion for preliminary 
Rule . injunction. Oral arguments for 

both the merits arguments and 
the preliminary injunction are 
scheduled for December 1 8 ,  
2017 .  
On December 8 ,  2017 ,  BLM 
finalized a rule  delaying certain 
effective dates of the Venting 
and Flaring Rule requirements. 
Based on the Delay Rule, 
Wyoming District Court issued 
an order staying this case. On 
February 22,  2018, the Northern 
District of California 
preliminarity enjoined BLM's 
Delay Rule. On February 26, 
2018 ,  North Dakota filed a 
motion for Wyoming Disctrict 
Court requesting that the stay 
be lifted, merits briefing 
continue, and the Court decide 
the case. On February 28, 
2018, Wyoming, Montana, and 
I ndustry Petitioners filed a 
motion with the Wyoming 
District Court to lift the stay, 
issue a prel iminary injunction, 
or, in the alternative , stay the 
portions of the rule that were 
delayed by the Delay Rule until 
the rule, in  its entirety, is 
replaced or repealed. 

In  February 2018 ,  SLM issued a 
proposed new rule which would 
rescind or revise components of 
the current rule. Wyoming 
District court stayed the current 
litigation pending the issuance 
of the final rule. The district 
court order staying the litigation 
was appealed to the 1 01ti Circuit 
court of appeals. Recently, the 
Court of Appeals denied a 
motion for a stay while the 
appeal is pending which leaves 
the district court's order intact 
during the appeal. The Court of 
Appeals also denied Wyoming 
and Montana's motion to 
dismiss the appeal. The 
parties are currently 
conferring on an  briefing 
schedule and a joint 
appendix for the appeal .  

SB 2024 
Ma rch 14th 2019 

Attachment 
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CAPTION SUM MARY 

Federal  Environmental California v. Bureau of California and Sierra Club are 

Regulation Land Management; challenging BLM's temporary 

Sierra Club v. Bureau of postponement of compliance 
Land Management deadlines for the Venting and 

Flaring 
rule.  Petitioners are alleging 

the action violates the APA 

STATUS COURT 

ND has filed as an lnte,venor Northern District of 
defendant. Plaintiffs have filed California, 

a motion for summary judgment No. 3 : 1 7-cv-03804 
and BLM has filed a motion to 
transfer venue to the U.S.  
District Court in Wyoming 
where the other action 

challenging the Venting and 
Flaring rule is currently 

pending. 
ND's motion to intervene was 

granted. The motion to transfer 
venue to District Court of 

Wyoming was denied. The 

Plaintiffs' motion for summary 
judgment was granted on 
October 4 ,  2017 ,  which vacated 

the BLM's administrative and 
temporary postponement of 
several of the future venting 
and flaring rule compliance 

dates/obligations. Case has 
been terminated. California, 

New Mexico, and 1 7  
conservation a n d  tribal citizen 
groups initiated an action in 
District Court of the Northern 
District, California for a 
declaratory judgment to vacate 

the BLM'S Delay Rule which 

delays certain requirement 
deadlines of the Waste 

Prevention, Production Subject 

to Royalties ,  and Resource 

Conservation Rule (Venting and 
Flaring Rule). There was also a 
request for a preliminary 

i njunction. 

North Dakota, Texas,  and three 
industry groups intervened in 
the suit opposing the request 

for a preliminary injunction and 
requesting the case be 

transferred to the Wyoming 

District Court. On February 22, 
20 18 ,  the motion for a 
prel iminary injunction was 
granted and the request to 

transfer the case to Wyoming 

District Court was denied. This 

case has been concluded. 

4 
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I ndustria l  Commission 
Oustand ing/Estimated Litigation B i l l i ng 

As of March 11, 2019 

Actual  Actual  Est imated Est imated Estimated Estimated 
January February March Apri l  May June 
I nvoices Invoices I nvoices I nvoices I nvoices I nvoices Total 

N D/BLM VF Ru le  $7,464 .16  $2 ,655 .00 $20,566 .00 $20,566 .00 $20,566 .00 $20,566 .00 $92,383 . 16  
N D  FTCA C l a im/Lit igat ion $3 ,295 .00 $4,905 .20 $8,460.00 $8,460.00 $8,460.00 $8,460.00 $42,040 .20 
BLM HF Ru le L it igat ion $2 ,835 .00 $0.00 $6,747 .00 $6,747 .00 $6,747 .00 $6,747 .00 $29,823 .00 
N D/Metha ne Ru le  $0.00 $ 1, 104 .70 $2,432 .00 $2,432 .00 $2,432 .00 $2,432 .00 $ 10,832 .70 
Sorum vs State of N D  $8,261 .91  $4,915 .07 $ 17,423 .00 $ 17,423 .00 $ 17,423 .00 $ 17,423 .00 $82,868 .98 
RCRA O i lfie ld  Wastes $0.00 $0 .00 $0 .00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Endu ro Resou rces $0.00 $0.00 $2,865 .00 $2,865 .00 $2,865 .00 $2,865 .00 $ 1 1,460.00 

Total Estimated Litigation Expen s :  
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